
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, MAY 6, 2024 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Meeting) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. Seymour Johnson Legislative and Consulting Update (Mayor)
b. Municipal Service District Parking Discussion
c. Special Event Street Closure Policy Discussion

4. NEW BUSINESS
d. FY24-25 Budget Update/Set Budget Work Sessions (Interim City Manager)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Father David Wyly)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of April 15, 2024

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Employee Performance Awards   
C. Tourette Syndrome Awareness Month Proclamation  
D. Mr. Milas Dorsey Kelly, Jr. Memorial Proclamation  
E. Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni and Friends, Inc. Proclamation 

VI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS
F. Military Appreciation Month Proclamation
G. Peace Officers’ Memorial Day (National Police Week) Proclamation
H. Mental Health Month Proclamation

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS
I. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 53: Water and Sewer Systems of the City of Goldsboro’s Code

of Ordinances (City Manager’s Office) 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
J. FY2024-2025 Annual Action Plan Final for Approval (Community Relations)
K. Approval of Resolution to Request Grant Funding through the Office of Local Defense Community Corporation

(OLDCC) and Authorizing the City’s 10% Participation in the Project Cost (Engineering) 
L. Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 811 N. Virgina Street (Community Technical Assistance,

Inc.) (Finance) 
M. Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 1007 N. John Street (Community Technical Assistance,

Inc.) (Finance) 
N.  Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 1310 N. Carolina Street (Community Technical Assistance,

Inc.) (Finance) 
O. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 114 S. Slocumb Street to

TWB Property Services, Inc. (Finance) 

Removed 



2 

P. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Fire Other Restricted Revenue Funds (F3110) (Finance) 
Q. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Police Other Restricted Revenue Funds (P3104) (Finance) 
R. Amending the Parks & Recreation Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1107) (Finance) 
S. Establishing a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Big Ditch Restoration (S1109) (Finance) 
T. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance -American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (R1107) (Finance) 
U. Donation of used holsters to Wayne Community College Basic Law Enforcement Training (Finance) 
V. Agreement Addendum for Financial Advisory Services (Finance) 
W. Resolution authorizing City officials to execute a memo of understanding with the Housing Authority of the 

City of Goldsboro for the use of the city fuel pumps (Finance) 
X. SET PUBLIC HEARING Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Mallard Oil Company – Corner of 

N. US 117 Hwy. and Tommys Rd. (Planning)  
Y. Request authorization to purchase a Ford F-150 Pickup Truck (Public Works) 
Z. Request authorization to have a perimeter fence installed around the City’s solid waste transfer station 

(Public Works)  
AA. Resolution Approving a Lease Agreement for the Travel and Tourism Department (Travel and Tourism)   
BB. Revision of the Lease and Resolution for Balanced Choice Cafe at the Goldsboro Golf Course and Event Center 

(City Clerk)  
CC. Creation of a Council Appointment Committee (City Clerk) 

X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION 
DD. Amending Chapter 72: Stopping, Standing and Parking, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances (Mayor) 
EE. Amending Chapter 75: Parking Schedules, of the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances (Mayor)  
FF. Creating a Special Event and Street Closing Policy (Mayor)  
GG. 5K for 5p – Temporary Street Closing (Police) 
HH. Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni Parade – Temporary Street Closure (Police)  
II. Wayne County Crime Stoppers Caper Chase – Temporary Street Closing (Police)

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN

Moved to Ind Action

Moved to 
May 20th

hjones
Line



1 of 12 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
APRIL 15, 2024 

WORK SESSION 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 

City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on April 15, 2024.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.   Mayor Gaylor requested to replace Item F, Goldsboro High School Men’s Basketball 
Team Recognition Proclamation, with a Proclamation recognizing the Goldsboro High School Wrestling Team under 
Presentations; move Item S, Center Street Jam Concert Series – Temporary Street Closure and Item T, 5K for 5p – 
Temporary Street Closing, to Items Requiring Individual Action; and remove Item Z, ParkEast Economic Development 
Agreement from Items Requiring Individual Action. Upon motion of Councilman Boyette, seconded by Councilwoman 
Weeks, and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda as amended.  

Old Business. 
Work session item a. Parking Update. Mayor Gaylor asked Council to go back to their constituents, and if they 

had any edits, comments, or questions regarding the ordinance to contact him, Interim City Manager Matt Livingston, or 
City Clerk Laura Getz, so that a full proposal can be brought back to the first meeting in May.   

Appointed Committee Reports. 
Work session item b. Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council. Gabriella Carrasquillo, Vice-Chair, thanked Council 

for allowing them to share what they have been doing over the last few months and presented Exhibit A.    

Work session item c. Mayor's Committee for Persons with Disabilities. Wanda Becton, Chair, handed a letter 
out to Council and presented Exhibit B.   

Councilwoman Weeks asked about how to donate to the playground and about the cost. Felicia Williams, 
Community Relations Director stated that donations could be made through the Community Relations Department, to the 
MCPD fund line for the playground, and that the playground must go through the formal bidding process. Councilwoman 
weeks also asked about the price of an adult changing table. Ms. Williams stated that Mayor Pro Tem Matthews had 
assisted with getting those quotes. Ms. Becton thanked Council for the opportunity to share what the committee has been 
up to.  

New Business. 
Work session item d. Jamz Out Juneteenth Event and Request. Liza Govan and Kariana Taylor, Curtis Media 

Group, presented Exhibit C. Mayor Gaylor informed Council that the support funds were already budget in Community 
Relations and were not coming from Fund Balance.  

Councilman Boyette made a motion to sponsor the event as presented. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones. Councilwoman Matthews stated that she was in full support of Juneteenth, but felt this vote should 
not be made until the discussion on street closings was finished since the event was presented with the street closing. 
Councilman Boyette withdrew his motion.  

Councilwoman Jones made a motion to financially support the event at a $1,500 cash and $4,500 in kind 
contribution as outlined in the presentation. The motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette. Council briefly discussed 
the item. The motion passed unanimously.  

Work session item e. Stormwater Control Measures Cost Increase. Jonathan Perry, Engineering Manager, 
presented Exhibit D.  Council discussed the options presented, and agreed to take no action at this time. The Ordinance 
will be reviewed, and letters will be sent to owners of SCMs about their options.   

Work session item f. Update on the Lead and Copper Project. Jonathan Perry, Engineering Manager, presented 
Exhibit E.  Interim City Manager Livingston stated that the project is due to be completed in October, and we are ahead of 
other municipalities.  

Item A



2 of 12 
 

 Work session item g. Streets and Sidewalk Inventory Update. Jonathan Perry, Engineering Manager, presented 
Exhibit F.  Council discussed the difference in resurfacing versus rebuilding streets, how to get new sidewalks, how to 
report sidewalks that need repair, and if streets and sidewalks would be included in the budget this year.  
 
 Work session item h. Street Closing Policy Discussion. Mayor Gaylor stated that he has asked some of the 
department heads to work on a draft to get to Council, so it can be reviewed and voted on at the May 6 meeting. Mayor 
Pro Tem Matthews stated she is in support of street closures, but asked the Council to be mindful that a street closure was 
just denied due to a policy not being place and more street closures are coming before Council tonight.  
 
 Work session item i. ParkEast Economic Development Agreement. Mayor Gaylor shared that they are working 
on a policy concerning the partnership with the County and the future development of ParkEast.  
 
 

Councilwoman Jones made comments on the recent deaths, the unhoused, and tent city, including the possible use 
of empty buildings in the Cherry Hospital area. She stated that they are our responsibility, we have to do something about 
them. She asked the community and churches to step up and help as well. Mayor Gaylor asked if she wanted to modify 
the agenda. Councilwoman Jones stated she wanted to hear what we are going to do and how we are going to address it. 
Mayor Gaylor stated he would invite the partners involved with the efforts around tent city to come discuss their work at 
the next meeting on May 6th, during the work session.  

 
Consent Agenda Review. Items L-R and U were reviewed, the remaining Consent Agenda Items were reviewed 

during the Regular Meeting.  
 

Item M. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 1006 N. Center 
Street to Mr. Christopher Jones. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

 
Councilman Boyette made motion to accept the offer from Mr. Christopher Jones for 1006 N. Center Street. The 

motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor, and unanimously carried.  
 
Mayor Gaylor recessed the meeting at 6:50 p.m.  

  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 
214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on April 15, 2024.  
 
Mayor Gaylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Father David Wyly provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor Charles Gaylor, IV, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Chris Boyette 
Councilwoman Jamie Taylor 
Councilwoman Beverly Weeks 
Councilman Rod White 
 

Also Present: Matthew Livingston, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

  
Approval of Minutes.  Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Work Session and 

Regular Meeting of April 1, 2024. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor, and unanimously carried.   
 
Presentations. 
Item B. Goldsboro Toastmasters Anniversary Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Jones: The Goldsboro City 

Council proclaimed April 2024 as GOLDSBORO TOASTMASTERS’ ANNIVERSARY MONTH in Goldsboro, North 
Carolina and commend this observance to our citizens, and recognize the Toastmasters members for their continued 
service to the community.   

 
Mayor Gaylor presented the proclamation to Henry Weil, President of Toastmasters, and Leslie Weil, Vice-

President of Toastmasters.  They thanked the Mayor and Council for the proclamation.  
 
Item C. Administrative Professionals Week Proclamation. Read by Councilman Boyette: The Goldsboro City 

Council proclaimed the week of April 21-27, 2024 as ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONALS WEEK in the City of 
Goldsboro and do hereby recognize and appreciate these administrative professionals and their valuable contributions in 
the workplace and support their continued professional growth. Mayor Gaylor presented the proclamation to Deputy City 
Clerk Holly Jones.   

 
Item D. Small Business Week Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Taylor: The Goldsboro City Council 

proclaimed, April 28 – May 4, 2024 as NATIONAL SMALL BUSINESS WEEK in Goldsboro, North Carolina, and 



3 of 12 
 

declares support for our small businesses, recognizes the innovations and contributions of small businesses, and urges the 
residents of our community to support small businesses and merchants during Small Business Week and throughout the 
year.  

 
Mayor Gaylor presented the proclamation to Estebon Guzman, Director Small Business Center at Wayne 

Community College; Kimber L. Roche', DGDC-Merchant Committee Chair; and Scott Satterfield, President Wayne 
County Chamber of Commerce. Ms. Roche' introduced Ms. Evelyn Johnson and Ms. Chris Etheridge, Founders of Elite 
Fashions, which is celebrating 60 years of business in Historic Downtown Goldsboro.  

 
Item E. National Volunteer Appreciation Week Proclamation. Read by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews: The Goldsboro 

City Council proclaimed the week of April 14-20, 2024 as NATIONAL VOLUNTEER APPRECIATION WEEK and 
urge all citizens to recognize and thank our volunteers across this country and within Goldsboro as we acknowledge the 
importance of our volunteers and take the time to officially thank them for all they do.  

 
Mayor Gaylor presented the proclamation to Sherry Archibald, President of United Way of Wayne County Inc. She 

invited everyone to recognize volunteers at the Paramount Theater April 16th, 5:30-6:30 PM.  
 
Item F. Goldsboro High School Wrestling Team Recognition Proclamation. Read by Interim City Manager Matt 

Livingston: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed April 15, 2024, as a day of congratulations and recognition for the 
GOLDSBORO HIGH SCHOOL 2024 WRESTLING TEAM and the manner by which these young men and women 
exemplify the high standards expected of student athletes as they balance the demands of sports, academics, and 
leadership in the community. Cougar Pride!   

 
Mayor Gaylor presented the proclamation to Coach James Sherrill and some of the team members. The Coach said 

all the members of the team were good wrestlers and good people, and that one day they would make Goldsboro High 
School the staple of wrestling as it used to be.  

 
Ceremonial Documents. 
Item G. National Day of Prayer Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Weeks: The Goldsboro City Council 

proclaimed Thursday, May 2, 2024 as A NATIONAL DAY OF PRAYER in observance of the National Day of Prayer in 
the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, and commend this observance to our citizens. Mayor Gaylor presented the 
proclamation to Father David Wyly.  

 
Item H. Autism Awareness Month Proclamation. Read by Mayor Gaylor: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed 

the month of April 2024 as AUTISM AWARENESS MONTH and encourages the community to join advocacy efforts 
and to learn more about autism to improve early diagnosis, to learn more about the experiences of autistic people from 
autistic people, and to build more welcoming and inclusive communities to support people with autism.  

 
Public Hearings.  
Item I. FY2024-2025 Annual Action Plan/Public Hearing. Public Hearing Held. The item was presented by 

Felecia Williams, Community Relations and Development Director. See Exhibit G.      

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has allocated $361,561 in CDBG and $293,636 
in HOME funds to the City of Goldsboro for fiscal year (FY) 2024-2025 to develop viable communities by providing 
integrated approaches that provide decent housing, suitable living environments, and expand economic opportunities for 
persons of low- and moderate-income. In addition, there are prior year funds allocated to the City that remain available to 
support previously programmed and ongoing community development activities.  

Due to the restrictive use of funds placed on the HOME program to focus on projects and/or activities designed 
exclusively to create affordable housing for low-income households, the City has historically each year carried over a 
substantial amount of prior years’ HOME funds when it has not undertaken large development projects. Staff have 
developed plans and are currently working with interested developers to responsibly spend these funds in the upcoming 
fiscal year towards large affordable housing projects. 

A draft copy of the 2024-2025 Annual Action Plan (AAP) was made available to the public on April 4, 2024 for a 
thirty (30) day public comment period that runs through May 5, 2024. A community public meeting was held on April 9, 
2024, at the Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro’s Dupont Center, during the regular meeting of the Commission 
on Community Relations and Development, to discuss priorities and eligible activities. During this evening’s regular 
meeting of the City Council, staff will provide the Council with a presentation highlighting proposed activities of the 
FY24-25 Annual Action Plan and open a public hearing to gather public input on the use of these federal funds. All public 
meetings and hearings, as well as the availability of the draft plan for public review and comment, were duly advertised in 
the Goldsboro News-Argus, as well as on the City’s website and other local media outlets. 

The 2024-2025 Annual Action Plan is the fifth year of implementing the 2020-2024 Five-Year Consolidated Plan.  

Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. The following people spoke:  

1. Phyllis Merritt-James, spoke about the need to streamline the application process to make it easier to help 
people, as well as building more parks and sidewalks.  

2. Matt Whittle, Habitat for Humanity Executive Director, spoke about the Dr H. E. McNair Street project, 
and made suggestions for the use of funding. He also thanked Council for their support and all that they do.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 



4 of 12 
 

Staff recommended that Council consider the AAP public comments, direct any appropriate changes to the plan, 
and approve the plan at the May 6, 2024 Council meeting. 

 
Before moving on, Mayor Gaylor asked City Attorney Ron Lawrence to briefly review what evidence could be 

considered for a Special Use Public Hearing. Attorney Lawrence reviewed the rules for Quasi-judicial hearings  

Item J. SU-9-24 The Alamo (Billiard Hall / Place of Entertainment w/ ABC Permit). Public Hearing Held and 
Special Use Permit Approved. The item was presented by Mark Helmer, Planning Director, after being properly sworn in.  

ADDRESS: 122 South Center Street. 

PARCEL #: 2599859660 

PROPERTY OWNER: Pacific Holding Company 

APPLICANT: Noe Mejia Rivera 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for outdoor seating at an existing Place of Entertainment with ABC 
Permit, located in the Central Business Zoning District. The Central Business District is established to maintain and 
strengthen the concentration of commercial, service, residential and institutional uses that serve the entire community and 
region. The district encourages a mix of high intensity pedestrian-oriented uses compatibly designed and arranged around 
the existing compact core.  

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Place of Entertainment with ABC Permit is permitted only 
after obtaining a Special Use Permit from Goldsboro City Council. The UDO also requires that In the Central Business 
District that there are to be no more than two Places of Entertainment with ABC Permit per city block. This proposal 
satisfies this requirement. 

Frontage:  40 feet 

Zoning:   Central Business District 

Existing Use:  Place of Entertainment 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Mixed-Use Downtown land use designation. The City of 
Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan identifies the following goals related to the Mixed-Use Downtown designation 
and desired development for the downtown Goldsboro area. The plan indicates that infill development is an action that is 
essential to the continued development of Goldsboro, this proposal qualifies as being infill development. The plan also 
identifies a goal as being to focus on improvement of the downtown Goldsboro area. 

The existing Place of Entertainment with ABC Permit is requesting an outdoor seating area to be located within the 
public right-of-way of South Center Street. The applicant has submitted a drawing showing general compliance with the 
Historic Preservation Design Guidelines. If City Council approves the request, the applicant will be required to secure a 
planning staff issued certificate of appropriateness prior to construction.   

Hours of Operation 

• Monday -Wednesday 4PM – 12AM 
• Thursday - Saturday: 12 Noon – 2AM 

Employees: 6 to 8 total employees per evening. 

Parking: No minimum off-street parking requirements.  

Staff has not distributed this proposed special use permit to the technical review committee.    

Staff is recommending a condition that the proposed outdoor seating area be designed and constructed in 
accordance with the Historic Preservation design guidelines for outdoor seating with ABC permits. 

After the Public Hearing is closed, City Council shall enter into deliberation and vote on each of the four findings to 
determine whether or not the Special Use Permit shall be issued. See the worksheet for the four findings to be voted on 
and staffs comments related to each finding. Council does have the ability to continue the hearing or place conditions 
upon its approval as long as Council is able to conclude that evidence exists in the record to support the condition. 
Council shall sign the Order to Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the hearing and deliberation at the April 15, 
2024, City Council meeting. 

Comments submitted from the Mayor, Council, and Mr. Helmer, are available for review on the City of Goldsboro’s 
YouTube page, Facebook page, or a recording is available in the City Clerk’s Office. 

Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not 
the Special Use Permit should be issued. 

1. Councilman Boyette made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, will 
not materially endanger the public health or safety. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and 
unanimously approved.  

 
2. Councilwoman Weeks made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, 

will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Boyette and unanimously approved.   



5 of 12 
 

 
3. Councilwoman Weeks made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, 

will be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in which it is located. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously approved.   

 
4. Councilman Boyette made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, will 

be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was seconded 
by Councilwoman Weeks and unanimously approved.   

 
Mayor Gaylor stated SU-09-24 is granted.  

Item K. SU-10-24 Four Day Movement Inc. (Special Population Housing for More Than Six Unrelated 
Individuals). Public Hearing Held and Special Use Permit Approved. The item was presented by Mark E. Helmer, 
Planning Director, after being properly sworn in. 

ADDRESS: 1019 Royall Avenue. 

PARCEL #: 3509489519, 3509488474, 3509580526, 3509580465 

OWNER: Four Day Movement Inc. 

APPLICANT: Four Day Movement Inc. 

The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to establish temporary supportive housing for the underprivileged, 
homeless, mentally challenged, and other at-risk members of the community. Four Day Movement Inc. is a 501 (C) (3) 
non-profit organization and is seeking approval to operate a facility at the former site of Woodard Retirement Village. 

The proposed location is a multi-building facility with adequate access to all public utilities and services to include 
water, sewer, electric, police and fire protection. The property contains approximately 18 on-site parking spaces and two 
driveway access points to Royall Avenue.  

The property is split zoned and located within an Office & Institutional 1 Zoning District and R-9 Residential 
Zoning District. The O&I-1 district is established to provide for the development of office and community institutions that 
have similar development characteristics and require locations close to residential and commercial uses. The district 
encourages the development of office and institutional uses that provide a step down in intensity between highly 
developed commercial districts and nearby neighborhoods. 

The R-9 district is established to accommodate both single and multifamily residential uses and to prohibit all 
activities of a commercial nature, except certain home occupations.  

In accordance with the City’s Unified Development Code, Table 5.4 Permitted Uses, Special Population Housing 
for more than six unrelated individuals is a permitted use in both the O&I-1 and R-9 zoning district with a City Council 
issued Special Use permit. In accordance with 5.2.10 Special Population Standards. Special population housing residences 
shall not be located within one-quarter mile (1,320 ft.) of an existing special population housing residence as measured 
from property line to property line. There are no other no other active special population housing within 1,320 feet of the 
subject property. 

The City’s Future Land Use map identifies the subject properties parcel as being suitable for commercial uses. The 
comprehensive land use plan also describes the O&I-1 zoning district as Office/Institutional land uses (including High 
Density Residential) have been located primarily in areas that have already been developed or require buffering to prevent 
potential conflicting land uses.   

According to the Unified Development Ordinance, a Special Use Permit is required to establish a Special 
Population Housing facility for more than six unrelated individuals. If the Special Use is approved, the use will be 
required to go through Site Plan review and comply with any applicable buffering and landscaping requirements listed in 
the City of Goldsboro Unified Development Ordinance.  

The site plan for the existing site will be reviewed by the TRC once the applicant has secured a special use permit. 

After the Public Hearing is closed, City Council shall enter into deliberation and vote on each of the four findings to 
determine whether or not the Special Use Permit shall be issued. See the worksheet for the four findings to be voted on 
and staffs comments related to each finding. Council shall sign the Order to Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of 
the hearing and deliberation at the April 15, 2024, City Council meeting. 

Councilwoman Weeks asked for an example of a buffer.  Mr. Helmer explained that the building was currently 
serving as a buffer, but they will look at the site plan to see where additional landscaping is needed if the special use 
permit is secured. 

Comments submitted from the Mayor, Council, and Mr. Helmer, are available for review on the City of Goldsboro’s 
YouTube page, Facebook page, or a recording is available in the City Clerk’s Office. 

Mayor Gaylor opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

City Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings in order to determine whether or not 
the Special Use Permit should be issued. 

1. Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, will 
not materially endanger the public health or safety. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Weeks and 
unanimously approved.  

 



6 of 12 
 

2. Councilman Weeks made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, will 
not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.   

 
3. Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, will 

be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in which it is located. The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Boyette and unanimously approved.   

 
4. Councilwoman Weeks made a motion that the use, including the conditions recommended by Planning staff, 

will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The motion was 
seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously approved.   

 
Mayor Gaylor stated SU-10-24 is approved. 

 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Gaylor opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Peter Stewart, spoke about the excessive speeding on Thoroughfare Road, the fear of being hit by speeding 
vehicles, and his fear for children’s safety.  

2. Hildegard Fossett, spoke about survey results from the Market on Mulberry and presented Exhibit H. 
3. Rodney Robinson, spoke about homelessness, and how many people do not know where to look or go to for 

help. He also raised complaints against the Goldsboro Housing Authority.  
 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.   
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. Interim City Manager Matt Livingston presented the Consent 

Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call 
vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and 
considered separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and 
roll call vote. Councilwoman Weeks moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items L-R and U-Y be approved.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Boyette and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Item L. Resolution – Donation of Personal Property to 501(C) Non-Profit, Wayne County Fireman’s 
Association. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

   
The City of Goldsboro owns fire-fighting equipment that is surplus, and no longer needed by the city. This 

firefighting equipment consist of 1 ¾” Fire Hose that is standard double jacket high pressure fire hose.  History has shown 
that there is little to no monetary value ever received by these items when sold on public auctions due to the fact that their 
use is not as common in today’s fire service. We have replaced this dated hose with a new low pressure fire hose and seek 
to donate this older hose to the Wayne County Fireman’s Association.  The Wayne County Fireman’s Association will 
then distribute it out to all the counties volunteer agencies for use.  

 
General Statute 160A-280 establishes that a city may donate to a nonprofit organization that is incorporated by (i) 

the United States, (ii) the District of Columbia, or (iii) one of the United States, any personal property, including supplies, 
materials, and equipment that the governing board deems to be surplus, obsolete, or unused.   

 
Staff recommended that Council authorize the donation of surplus fire-fighting equipment to the 501(C) non-profit, 

Wayne County Fireman’s Association. Council adopted the following entitled resolution. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 
 
RESOULUTION NO. 2024-47 “RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS AND DONATING FIRE EQUIPMENT” 

 
Item M. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 1006 N. Center 

Street to Mr. Christopher Jones. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
Staff has received an offer to purchase city/county owned property.  Council must either accept or reject the offer, 

and if accepted authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 160A-266 and 160A-269).   
  
The following offer has been received for the sale of surplus real property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, 

and upset bid process (G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 
  
1006 N. Center Street 
Offeror:  Christopher Jones 
Offer:  $880.00 
Bid Deposit: $44.00 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of a 

personal check. 
 
Parcel #: 55710   Pin #:  3600007869 
Tax Value: $1,760.00 Zoning: R-6 
  
Staff recommended the Council accept the offer in order to start the upset bid process. 



7 of 12 
 

 
Staff recommended that the City Council, by motion, accept or reject offer on 1006 N. Center St from Mr. 

Christopher Jones, and if accepted, adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-48 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS” 

 
Item N. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 

(JAG) (P3102). Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
 
City Council authorized the creation of a special revenue fund for the Justice Assistance Grants (JAG) on June 17, 

2019.  The ordinance has been amended as needed to add new JAG awards.   
 
The City of Goldsboro was awarded the following federal JAG grants from the U.S. Department of Justice Office of 

Justice Programs: 
 

Grant Name Project Budget Project Spend 
Prior JAG Awards $1,302.64 $0.00 
2017 JAG (2017-DJ-BX-0128) $44,985.00 $44,942.19 
2018 JAG (2018-DJ-BX-0075)   $48,372.00 $46,920.84 
2019 JAG (2019-DJ-BX-00708) $47,003.00 $42,435.19 
2020 JAG (2020-H8399-NC-DJ) $34,766.00 $30,381.72 
2022 JAG (15PBJA-22-GG-02635-JAGX) $23,574.00 $21,266.34 
 Total Expended $185,946.28 

 
At this time a budget amendment is required to deobligate the remaining unexpended funds to reflect final amounts 

received and expended so that these particular line item projects may be closed. Also, presented is an entry to close a JAG 
awards prior to 2019 in an amount of $1,302.64 which was included in the original budget ordinance which we thought 
would be needed, but was not and had been accounted for in the General Fund. The fund remains open for current (2023 
JAG) and future JAG awards. 

 
Staff recommended that the following entitled Special Revenue Fund Ordinance for the Edward Byrne Memorial 

Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) (P3102) be amended for ($14,056.36) for the prior 2019 JAG, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, 
and 2022 JAG Grants. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-10 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A SPECIAL REVENUE PROJECT FOR THE EDWARD 
BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) (P3102)” 

 
Item O. Amending a Capital Projects Fund Ordinance – Parks & Recreation Capital Projects FY19-24 

(G1104). Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 
  
On June 17, 2019, City Council authorized the establishment of a capital project fund for various Parks & 

Recreation directed construction projects.  The City received several charitable donations, grants, and sponsorships in 
which the donor/sponsor requested that the funds be spent on improvements at City owned Parks and Recreation facilities. 

 
The current projects are as follows: 

 
Project Budget Spent to Date Remaining 

Budget 
Multi-Sports Complex $330,500 $211,270 $119,230 
All Inclusive Playground $5,550 $0 $5,550 
GoWayneGo Projects $96,893 $39,802 $57,091 
Southend Park Playground $200,000 $0 $200,000 
Total $632,943 $251,072 $381,871 

 
The timeframe of the project needs to be extended from FY19-FY24 to FY19-FY28 to allow sufficient time for the 

completion of the projects. 
  
Staff recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled grant project ordinance amendment for the Parks 

& Recreation Projects FY19-28 (G1104) to extend the project life until June 30, 2028. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-11 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND FOR PARKS & 
RECREATION PROJECTS FY19-28 (G1104)” 

 
Item P. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant for Source 

Capture System Installation for Fire Stations 1, 2, 3 and 5 (EMW-2019-GF-0443) (R1104). Ordinance Adopted. The 
item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director. 

 
The City applied for the FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant for a Source Capture System for Fire Stations 1, 2, 

3 and 5 in March 12, 2020 and received notification of award on July 24, 2020. Council accepted the award of 



8 of 12 
 

$202,083.00 by resolution on August 17, 2020.  The grant was spent to upfit the four stations with a vehicle exhaust 
removal system.   
 

The project cost was approved at $202,083.00, requiring a 10% local match of $18,371.18 which was funded by the 
General Fund.  The period of performance was July 31, 2020 through July 30, 2022. 
 

The work was completed December, 2021 and the City received the required certificate of occupancy from the City 
Inspections department for all locations.  FEMA just requested a formal grant close in FEMA GO, and the Fire Chief and 
the Finance Director have completed the necessary reporting and submitted the grant closure request int he FEMA portal 
to officially close the grant for the City. This was submitted on April 2, 2024.  There are no additional funds that need to 
be appropriated for the FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant for Source Capture System Installation so the project may 
be formally closed by Council. The total project spend was $202,083.00.  
  
 Staff recommended that the following entitled Grant Project Ordinance for the FEMA Assistance to Firefighters 
Grant for Source Capture System Installation for Fire Stations 1, 2, 3, and 5 (EMW-2019-GF-0443) (R1104) be closed. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-12 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE FEMA 
ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT FOR SOURCE CAPTURE SYSTEM INSTALLATION FOR FIRE STATIONS 
1, 2, 3 AND 5 (EMW-2091-GF-0443) GRANT PROJECT FUND (R1104)” 

 
Item Q. Amending Grant Project Fund for the Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Out of 

Floodplain (CS370482-08) Capital Project Fund (S1106). Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Catherine 
Gwynn, Finance Director.  

 
On March 1, 2021, the City received an intent to fund the Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Out of 

Floodplain (CS370482-08) from the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality in the amount of $3,058,000.  
The loan was from the Additional Supplemental Appropriations for Disaster Relief Act of 2019 (ASADRA) and has a 
maximum interest rate of 0.10%. City council authorized the creation of a capital project fund on June 21, 2021 to 
appropriate funds for the project.  A total of $30,000 was spent on engineering fees in November, 2021. 

   
In the spring of 2022, the expansion of the Mount Olive Pickle (MOPCO) facility was formulated which would 

encompass the Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Out of Floodplain project.  The entire MOPCO project 
was managed by the Wayne County Development Alliance through a memorandum of understanding with the City and 
the County execute in the fall of 2022. Since the project formally adopted under the capital project ordinance (S1106) was 
no longer needed, the loan was not accepted and there were no further expenditures in this project fund. 

 
Staff recommended that the following entitled Project Budget Ordinance for the Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump 

Station Relocation Out of Floodplain (CS370482-08) Capital Project Fund be closed. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-13 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE LITTLE 
CHERRY BIG CHERRY PUMP STATION RELOCATION OUT OF FLOODPLAIN (CS370482-08) CAPITAL PROJECT 
FUND (S1106)” 

 
Item R. Resolution authorizing City officials to execute a memo of understanding with the Goldsboro 

Wayne Transportation Authority for the use of the city fuel pumps. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by 
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.  

 
The City has allowed the Goldsboro Wayne Transportation Authority (GWTA) access to use the city fuel pumps.  

The City bills the GWTA in arrears and charges the weighted average cost of the fuel plus a $.05/per gallon administrative 
fee.  City staff researched available city records and cannot find an agreement or memo of understanding for the use of the 
city fuel pumps.  Staff has communicated with the GWTA and they do not have an agreement addressing the use of the 
city fuel pumps. 

 
The Finance department through the Procurement division has been working on the conversion of the fuel tracking 

and billing since March, 2023.  The transactions are currently monitored through the RTA system managed by Public 
Works Garage.  When Finance took over the management of the fuel system and purchases last spring, one of the goals 
was to upgrade the fuel tracking and billing system to a cloud version to provide more detailed information and access to 
the user departments. 

 
In the process of this upgrade to the hardware and software of the fuel tracking and billing, we became aware that 

there was no formal memo of understanding with the GWTA about the use of the city fuel system.  We have worked with 
the Director Don Willis over the past six months to develop a mutually agreeable arrangement.  Mr. Willis has provided 
the attached signed MOU.   

 
The MOU defines the responsibilities of the City and the GWTA.  It increases the administrative Fee from $.05 per 

gallon to $.09 per gallon.  The fee will be allocated as $.07 for capital maintenance of the fuel island and systems, and 
$.02 for administrative and overhead costs related to the maintenance and upkeep of the system, software.  There will be 
an internal service fund created with the FY25 budget to capture the activity of the fuel system and to ensure that the net 
equity accumulated in the fund for capital is kept separate from the General Fund. 

 



9 of 12 
 

Staff recommends that Council authorize the Interim City Manager and staff to execute the memorandum of 
understanding. 

 
Staff recommended that the following entitled resolution be adopted by Council authorizing the Interim City 

Manager and staff to execute the memo of understanding between the City and the GWTA for the use of the city fuel 
system. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-49 “A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER AND STAFF TO 
EXECUTE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY RELATED TO THE MEMO OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE GOLDSBORO 
WAYNE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY FOR THE USE OF THE CITY FUEL SYSTEM” 

 
Item U. Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion Recommendation. Recommendation Approved. The 

item was presented by Robert Sherman, Public Utilities Director.   
 
A Request for Qualifications for Design/Build Teams was invited on 3/20/24 and re-invited for 4/1/24 due to 

insufficient responses to the first invite. The second publication satisfied procurement requirements. The City received 
submittals from the D/B teams of TA Loving/CDM Smith and Crowder Construction/Hazen & Sawyer. The evaluation 
committee members were tasked with reviewing each D/B team’s Statement of Qualifications (SOQs). The committee 
then met on 4/4/24 to discuss each member’s findings and select a suitable design/build team.    

 
Both D/B teams presented comprehensive and competitive SOQs, showcasing their expertise and commitment to 

excellence. The evaluation committee selected Crowder Construction/Hazen & Sawyer as the D/B team for the project.  
The decision reflects a strategic choice to partner with a firm that have a proven track record of successful project delivery 
and stakeholder satisfaction. 

 
Staff recommended that the City Council approve the selection of the Design/Build team of Crowder Construction/Hazen 

& Sawyer for the WRF expansion project based on the committee’s overall evaluation of their demonstrated capabilities and 
collaborative approach. This decision aligns with the city’s goals of ensuring the successful and timely completion of the 
project while maintaining a high standard of quality and efficiency. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 

 
Item V. State grant funding for WRF system upgrade. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Robert 

Sherman, Public Utilities Director.   
 
State grant funding is available twice a year to support Water and Sewer Projects. The City of Goldsboro Public 

Utilities Staff has recommended the Design Build team for the plant upgrade. They will be responsible for applying for state 
funding on behalf of the City of Goldsboro.  

 
The Design Build team collaborates with and prepares applications for project funding from the North Carolina 

Division of Water Infrastructure (NC DWI) Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) to facilitate the upgrade and 
expansion of the WRF. 

 
Staff Recommended that the City Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and Interim 

City Manager to sign for NCDEQ DWI WRF plant upgrade Governance and Funding grant applications as well as the 
contractual agreements with the Design Build team for the WRF Plant upgrade. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette 
(7 Ayes).   
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-50 “RESOLUTION OF STATE GRANT FUNDING FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S WRF 
SYSTEM UPGRADE” 

 
Item W. Proposal for CDM Smith to apply for Evaluation and Pilot Testing Grant for PFAS Studies on 

behalf of the City of Goldsboro. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Robert Sherman, Public Utilities 
Director.   

 
The City of Goldsboro is proactively preparing for compliance with a new regulation that is forthcoming from the 

U.S. EPA for drinking water quality.   The regulation will lower the allowable concentrations of multiple PFAS 
compounds in treated drinking water.  The regulation is currently in draft form and is anticipated to be made final in the 
first half of 2024.  The City will likely have 3 years to comply with this new regulation. As such, the City will need to 
complete an engineering evaluation and pilot testing of possible treatment technologies that can achieve this new 
treatment standard, in order to identify an effective and efficient approach. 

 
Engaging CDM Smith to undertake pilot testing and pursue grant funding, Goldsboro can access specialized 

knowledge and financial support essential for tackling the PFAS crisis. Collaborating with a reputable firm like CDM 
Smith will enhance the city’s capacity to implement sustainable solutions and mitigate the risks associated with PFAS 
exposure. 

 
Staff recommended that the Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and Interim City 

Manager to allow CDM Smith to apply for Pilot Testing on behalf of the City of Goldsboro for the purposes of PFAS 
testing and studies. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-51 “RESOLUTION OF STATE GRANT FUNDING FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S WTP 
PFAS EVALUATION AND PILOT STUDY” 

 



10 of 12 
 

Item X. Proposal for CDM Smith to apply for Capital Project Grant for PFAS Studies on behalf of the City 
of Goldsboro. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Robert Sherman, Public Utilities Director.   

 
The City of Goldsboro is proactively preparing for compliance with a new regulation that is forthcoming from the 

U.S. EPA for drinking water quality. The regulation will lower the allowable concentrations of multiple PFAS compounds 
in treated drinking water. The regulation is currently in draft form and is anticipated to be made final in the first half of 
2024.  The City will likely have 3 years to comply with this new regulation. As such, the City will then need to implement 
a capital project to design and construct the necessary treatment improvements at the City's Water Treatment Plant. 

 
Engaging CDM Smith to undertake pilot testing and pursue grant funding, Goldsboro can access specialized 

knowledge and financial support essential for tackling the PFAS crisis. Collaborating with a reputable firm like CDM Smith 
will enhance the city’s capacity to implement sustainable solutions and mitigate the risks associated with PFAS exposure. 

 
Staff recommended that the council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and Interim City 

Manager to allow CDM Smith to apply for a Capital Project Grant on behalf of the City of Goldsboro for the purposes of 
PFAS testing and studies. Consent Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-52 “RESOLUTION OF STATE GRANT FUNDING FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S WTP 
PFAS TREATMENT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT” 

 
Item Y. Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information. The various departmental reports for March 

2024 were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as information. Consent 
Agenda Approval. Weeks/Boyette (7 Ayes). 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Item S. Center Street Jam Concert Series – Temporary Street Closure. Closure Approved. The item was 

presented by Mike West, Police Chief.  
 
The City of Goldsboro’s Downtown Development Dept., in conjunction with the Downtown Goldsboro 

Development Corporation looks forward to hosting the annual Center Street Jam Summer Concert Series. The Center 
Street Jam is a community-favorite event, bringing crowds of 1500 – 3500 to enjoy live music, fellowship and food from 
local vendors. As always, Center Street Jam concerts are free, family-friendly and open to the public.  

 
The events will be hosted every other Thursday from 6:00pm – 9:00pm at The HUB in the 200 block of South 

Center Street. Event dates are May 2nd, May 16th, May 30th, June 13th, June 27th, July 11th, July 25th, and August 8h. 
For the safety of event-goers, the Downtown Development Department and DGDC are requesting the closure of the 
northbound lane of South Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut from 4:00pm – 9:30pm.  

  
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 

addressed:  
 
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of 

the Event. 
 
Staff recommended that Council, by motion, grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of South 

Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street and a partial closure of East Chestnut Street from Center Street to the 
Chestnut Street PD parking lot entrance, as stated above.  

 
Councilman White asked about the Police Department not staffing or working the event. Chief West explained that 

they close the streets and walk the event for security, but are not working at the event itself.  
 
Mayor Gaylor stated that Council is working on an updated street closure policy, and although he understood 

Council wanting the policy in place before approving further street closures, he did not foresee a policy that would 
disqualify the Center Street Jam Series, and asked Council to approve the item.  

 
Councilman White asked about the difference between the Downtown Development Department and the Downtown 

Goldsboro Development Corporation. Interim City Manager Matt Livingston explained that the DDD is made of 
employees and is funded by the downtown tax district of the municipality, to assist downtown businesses, organize the 
Mian Street Program, and promote economic development and revitalization in the downtown area. He further explained 
that the DGDC is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization designed to do things the City may not be able to do; they can be 
more creative and do not have as many hoops to jump through to be able to partner with others and complete downtown 
transformation projects. Mr. Livingston stated that the two work together and work with the City to create public private 
partnerships to get things done.  

 
Council further discussed the item and street closures in general, including the need to be consistent and the need to 

wait until an updated policy is in place before approving or voting for any street closures.  
 



11 of 12 
 

Councilwoman Weeks made a motion to approve the street closure. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman 
Jones. Mayor Gaylor, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Boyette, and Councilwoman Weeks voted for the motion. 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews and Councilman White voted against the motion. Councilwoman Taylor did not vote, however, 
pursuant to G.S. 160A-75, Councilwoman Taylor’s vote would be considered an affirmative vote. The motion passed 5-2. 

 
Item T. 5K for 5p – Temporary Street Closing. Closure Tabled. The item was presented by Mike West, Police 

Chief.  
 
An application was received from Mikayla Barfield and The 5p – Society, requesting permission to hold a 5K to 

raise awareness for 5p – (cri du chat) on Saturday, May 18, 2024, from 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. 
 
The race is scheduled to begin and end on Center Street near Spruce Street.  The event runs through the downtown 

and residential areas of Goldsboro to include Center Street, Walnut Street, Jefferson Street, and Mulberry Street.  The 
Police, Fire, Public Works, and Downtown Goldsboro offices have been notified of this request. 

 
The race will start and finish in the same area. The time requested for the closing is from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. to 

allow for the setup, event, and dismantle.   
 
 Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles. 
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the Police Department. 
4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices are to be involved in the logistical aspects 

of this event. 
 
Staff recommended that the Council approve the street closing of sections of Center Street at Pine Street, Spruce 

Street, Chestnut Street, Walnut Street, and Mulberry Street for the 5K for 5p event from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. on 
Saturday, May 18, 2024.   

 
Mayor Gaylor expressed the need for a policy to provide guidance and asked Council to table the item until the next 

meeting, after they had a policy in place.  
 
Council discussed the problems that the street closure may cause for the businesses, the need to be consistent, and the 

need to have a policy in place before approving any closures.   
 
Councilwoman Taylor made a motion to table the street closure until the May 6th Council Meeting. Councilwoman 

Jones seconded the motion. Council discussed bringing the item back at a special meeting if a policy could be established 
prior to the May 6th meeting. They also discussed how to share their metrics and concerns so that the policy could be 
updated.  

 
Councilwoman Taylor amended the motion to table the item until the May 6th meeting, unless a policy is in place 

before that time, then she would like a special meeting to be called to vote. Councilwoman Jones seconded the amended 
motion. Couniclwoman Jones stated that when we do the policy, we need to look at everything and have it down in writing, 
because every street closing is different. Mayor Gaylor, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilwoman Taylor, Councilwoman 
Weeks, and Councilwoman Jones voted in favor of the motion. Councilman White voted against the motion. Councilman 
Boyette did not vote, however, pursuant to G.S. 160A-75, Councilman Boyette’s vote would be considered an affirmative 
vote. The motion passed 6-1.  

 
City Manager’s Report. Interim City Manager Matt Livingston shared that he was working on the transmittal letter 

for the audit; we are near the finish line, they will be coming on site soon to complete some things. He also shared that 
staff was in the midst of budget cuts to balance the budget.  

 
Mr. Livingston stated that by April 19th we have to send a letter to CDM Smith regarding our preferred path for the 

Wastewater Reclamation Facility. He stated that in a merger, without more specific information on the Water and Sewer 
Authority voting structure and asset compensation, our position is that Goldsboro should remain the regional provider as 
we are now, and the other municipalities and counties would become a part of our system. Mr. Livingston asked Council 
for approval to write a letter stating that Goldsboro is not comfortable with a Water and Sewer Authority at this time, and 
prefer things to remain as they are. Council discussed if they had enough information to make a vote.  

 
Councilman Boyette made a motion to approve or authorize Interim City Manager Matt Livingston to write a letter 

on or before April 19th expressing the City’s intent to supportive of the 4A/ Raleigh Model of the Regional Merger 
Feasibility Study. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Taylor and unanimously approved.  

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman White stated that he wants to celebrate any kids and any school that is doing well. He asked the Mayor 

if an update on the Crossroads Strategy/Friends of Seymour Agreement could be on the agenda. Councilman White stated 
that he attended and enjoyed the Market on Mulberry event. He also asked citizens to reach out to those that have spouses 
deployed to see if they need anything until their spouses return.  

 
Councilwoman Weeks read a letter she received from a young woman that recently died. She stated that if anyone 

needs help, there is help out there if you will ask for it. She also stated to the drug dealers: this is not over, we will be 
relentless in your pursuit.  



O . 

O

U

N

y

O

0  

U . 

cC

O '

nc 
p

co

n ^

G

p °' 

o

AZ

N .

0

p

O

N '(

z

0

cd

to

CA

th

40

c

N

N

o

b

W

4)

O

cpG .. 

rJ

CJ

N

CZ

bq

N

m

04

Cd

0 + 

U ..

U

N

cC

N

N

3

0

O> 

O

O >

i

o

O

U .

0

o

cdpA
a 

wto
CO) 

u

co

OU

y  

zU

U

3

b

y .

d

0

O

bpp 

n

U

N

s

bA

y

U

U

Ei

O

0 "

0U
y

U '+

C4y
U

M

a°

oi ' 

b

3

o

O

w

Y

U

C7 °' 

to

o

CO

ami •° 

x

y
1.. 

o

03

cani
ami

3

0 '

o  

fs" ' ' :' `

Z

4

oA

Uy
U

Cd

Oto
N

p

U

Op
O

Q, 

N

N

Ei

N

O

o "

C

s. 

Q. 

cg

A

4cdrncd
JU" 

U

Q) .'. 

y

y  

U

A

U

U

N

bq

bA

N

a

A

U

N

c 

t

cC

SS

U

ti

U ..

U. 

0

t4-

4

3 , 

U -- 

b

ani

a 

O 

0

o  

co

ani

b

o

O

o

A "

U., 

C-) 

c 

Ob

0

co

o

0. 

U

Ln

0 

N

U

U

U "

C

C*

U

p

O

q > 

0

O

U

0., 

U

O , '. 

O

n

0

w  

tU.  

y  

ti }" 

U

N

y  

E  -

14

N

boiD :

fl

CO

0>, ' 

o >,

opo
o

78

rA

3

c °-

0

0

3

3

v

m

UA
0

N
r -
ION

V-

1





























Item C



Item D



Item E



Item F



Item G



Item H



I

Removed



ORDINANCE NO. 2024 - ____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 53: WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS  

OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

WHEREAS, it is a standard practice for cities to request voluntary annexation upon satisfactory provision of 
water and sewer services for residential, commercial, and industrial property; and  

WHEREAS, there are instances where new development is requesting not to be required to annex in order 
for the development to occur. A water and sewer agreement with an industrial customer that includes 
voluntary annexation may also include economic development incentives; and 

WHEREAS, after a review of Chapter 53, city staff recommend updating section 53.17 (B) as noted below.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, that section 53.17 (B) of 
the Code of Ordinances, City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, is hereby amended as follows:  

Chapter 53 

§ 53.17 CONDITIONS FOR MAKING WATER AND SEWER CONNECTIONS. 
    
   (B)   For industrial property: 

      (1)   An industry will be defined as listed under Division D, Manufacturing, of the Standard Industrial 
Classification Manual, published by the Office of the Management and Budget of the United States Government. 

      (2)   The city will agree to provide access to water and sewer lines to any industry requesting such extension, 
subject to available capacity, provided that the industry locates within three miles of the city limits. 

      (3)   An industry requesting access to water and sewer lines will be granted such access upon execution of a 
formal agreement with the city to file a petition for voluntary annexation on or before the date occupancy 
begins. 

      (4)   It shall be the responsibility of the developer to pay for the extension of water and sewer lines from 
the point of nearest access to its property, but the city shall agree to reimburse the developer for such costs in 
accordance with this chapter and formula provided for the payment of frontage fees for residential and 
commercial development. If the developer is in fact the county, the developer will be responsible for the 
extension of water and sewer lines including any oversized lines to be required for future development. In 
addition, the operation and maintenance of pump lift stations constructed relative to these lines outside of the 
city limits would be borne by the county until properly for which pump lift station was installed is annexed. If 
the developer is in fact a private developer, then it shall be the responsibility of the city to bear the costs of 
any oversized lines required by it. However, the county will also be entitled to the recoupment of its expenses, 
including oversized lines, through frontage fees in accordance with the policy and formula described for 
residential and commercial development. Recapture of the expenses of oversized lines shall be based upon the 
front foot cost of the line, excluding oversizing, plus the line's future inflated cost not to exceed the original 
front foot cost of the oversized line. 

      (5)   Any industry located outside the city limits obtaining access to water and/or sewer facilities shall 
continue to pay revenues based upon the rates then in effect and shall continue to pay such prevailing rates 
until its annexation into the city pursuant to the petition for voluntary annexation. 

     (6)   The following parcels are exempt from the annexation requirements set forth above: Park East Lot 9, 
Park East Lot 18 and the parcel identified as Wayne County PIN 351991580. 

 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 6th day of May, 2024. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       Charles Gaylor, IV  

Mayor  
Attested by:   
 
 
__________________________ 
Laura Getz 
City Clerk 



J



2024-2025
Annual Action Plan

May 6, 2024



The Annual 
Action Plan 
“AAP”

Provides a concise summary of the actions, 
activities, and the specific federal and non-
federal resources that will be used each year 
to address the priority needs and specific 
goals identified by the Consolidated Plan. 



FY24-25 HUD 
ALLOCATIONS

• CDBG - $361,561

• HOME- $293,636

*These amounts are anticipated as HUD has 
not yet released FY24 allocations.



FY24-25
 NEW PROPOSED ACTIVITIES

Activity Name Activity Type Funding Source

H.E. McNair Development Public Facilities & Improvements: 
Infrastructure

CDBG

Abbott Crossing Apts. Multifamily Development HOME

Eagles Safe Spot Communities Clearance CDBG

Berkeley Bluffs Multifamily Development HOME



Activity Name Funding Source & Amount Prior Year Funds that can 
be applied

Activity Description

Program Administration CDBG: $72,312 (20%)
HOME: $29,336 (10%) $0

Support Program Delivery

Demolition/Clearance CDBG: $35,015 $0 To address slum/blight

Homeowner Rehabilitation CDBG: $180,000 $30,000 To assist 7 homeowners @ 
maximum of $30,000

Project Delivery CDBG: $20,000 $0 To support rehab. soft costs

Public Services CDBG: $54,234 (15%) $0 Grants to non-profits

Affordable Housing HOME: $150,296 CDBG: $55,000
HOME: $804,597

Construct/Rehabilitate  rental units

Down Payment Assistance HOME: $70,000
$0

To assist 7 first-time homebuyers 
with down payment and closing 

costs

Affordable Housing: CHDO HOME: $44,004
(15% HOME) $0

Construction/Rehabilitation of 
housing units for LMI families

Activity Totals: CDBG: $361,561
HOME: $293,636

CDBG: $85,000
HOME: $804,597



K



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 — 3

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS THROUGH

THE OFFICE OF LOCAL DEFENSE COMMUNITY CORPORATION ( OLDCC) 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has heretofore found it the public
interest to undertake a flood mitigation project at the Wastewater Treatment Plant; and

WHEREAS, the Office of Local Defense Community Corporation ( OLDCC) offers grants

for addressing deficiencies in community infrastructure supportive of a military installation; and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost for the Wastewater Treatment Plant flood mitigation

project equals $ 400, 000; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to
request grant funding for this project through the Office of Local Defense Community
Corporation ( OLDCC); and

WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes the City of Goldsboro' s 10% participation in the

estimated project cost. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1. The Council authorizes the Interim City Manager to execute and file a grant application
on behalf of the City Goldsboro with the Office of Local Defense Community
Corporation ( OLDCC). 

2. The Council authorizes the 10% participation by the City of Goldsboro in the estimated
project cost. 

3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 6th day of May, 2024. 

Attested by: 

jw-" 
Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, 

O
Mayor

4 4

U

RIrED



L



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- S 1

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS

REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A- 269

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 811 N. Virginia
Street ( NC Pin #2690806050); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, 

after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has approved the sale at the February 6, 2024 Board meeting and
then conducted the upset bid process; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in the
amount of $2, 800. 00 ( Two Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and no/ 100) from Community Technical

Assistance, Inc. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares the properties as surplus. 

2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General
Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to
convey the property to the Offeror. 

4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is
transferred and recorded. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 61 day of May, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor

Mnvnr







�����������	��
� ������������

������������������������ !"#�����������������$%��
&�'(()*�+������&�,�� '�'

-./01�23405/ 678978:86�;<:6<=>�?@2A5/�3B�C3DEFG3H3��������-./01�23405/ IJKLMNOPQQJRS�TUKJVW ��?XYZ[\<�8]̂ :>:]:;:_̀ �̀T�abIcbTbP�de fgPeW�OhTbi�bj�k_lmnlmomkmpp � � bj�TqW�̀opppplkppmpp_rqhTestbju�PjaPgqIuv�ePw�x̀ppyz�rbes�{�cqgjd|qIq�x̀ppy������� rPIj�Tq}�̀�U~�̀ �IJ�RS�sJRMW�op̀ ��eR��sJRMW�opok ge�k�|g����qP���ced }̀pppp�ge � dIr���PQQMR�VJ�����UN�p̀ _p̀ �ruTeIPg�|hdbTudd�jbdeIbre et{̀o rb{p̀ �I{ppuw{m Pe{ gPde�PrebqT�op̀ lplo�230F5H425A30�E15.AD @.H�15��.D41 � E1?H12A.5A30 23HH1D.5A30�3B��.D41535.D�?3A05��.D41 �G4ADEA0C�.E�4F5@105FeqePg�Pj�hdevuTe�PreqIeqePg�ihPgbes�bTjuw �hduvqj u~~}PMJR ihPg |PduIPeu IrTus|Ps| rIujuTru�eq �p̀ pp � � � � � � ��cqqj �E1?H��G4ADEA0C��.D41���2.HE pesfuW�dbTcgu��Pvbgs�IudbjuTebPg �desguW��� E1?H��3G7�B��.D41���2.HE p@.H�15�D.0E��.D41���2.HE �zppp535.D�@.H�15��.D41���2.HE �zppp535.D�.??H.AF1E��.D41���2.HE �zppp535.D�.??H.AF1E��.D41���?.H21D �zppp535.D�?H1F105�4F1��.D41���?.H21D p535.D��.D41�E1B1HH1E���?.H21D p535.D�5.�.GD1��.D41���?.H21D�� �zppp?HA3H|hbgjbTc�aPghu mzp�pq|w��aPghu pgPTj�aPghu �zpppfIuduTe�hdu�aPghu pju�uIIuj�aPghu peqePg�aPghu _zp�p?1H@A5rqju jPeu Tqeu Thv|uI PvqhTeIqheW�teId�jW F.D1F�E.5.3BB�H123HE E.51 E11E5/?1 �74�7A A0EA2.51�F.D1F?HA21G33� ?.C1 @3/Hpo___ pknn `̀ op̀ ` tj r b ppp__k p_�̀ ` �̀p̀ tj h a ppp__k p�p_ ` �̀ln tj h b p�uPeuj�PIuP��0351FQoÒl��J�Uz�nÒl�VK�SS��JMJ}̀Ò_��qhdu�juvquj}F4G.H1.5/?1 CF.H1. � H?D2FBAH1?D.21 � �F4G.H1.535.DF �� �23E1�4.DA5/E1F2HA?5A3023405D5�-5�40A5F 40A5?HA21 3HAC��230E GDEC� FA�1B.25 ./G1/G .00�E1?H.51 3�H �230E 3G7�B�E1?H��.D41535.D�3G7�B��.D41 pG4ADEA0C�EA@10FA30F����D.0E�A0B3H@.5A30�AC�1F5.0E�G1F54F1 4F123E1 D32.D�30A0C BH305.C1E1?5� E1?5�7�FA�1 D0E@3E 230EB.25 35�1H�.E�4F5@105F.0E�0351F��HB���.2���D2��53��35 H3.E5/?1 D.0E40A5?HA21 535.DD.0E40A5F 4055/? 535.D.E�F5 .E�4F51E40A5�?HA21 D.0E�.D41 3�1HHAE1�.D41 D.0E0351Fp̀ pp p̀ pp I{n mp m̀p }̀pppp o }̀pppp� � np}pp mp}ppp �� }̀ppp np}pp �ppp p�535.D�@.H�15�D.0E�E.5. � � �zppp�535.D�?H1F105�4F1�E.5. � � ��



M



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- S

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS

REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A- 269

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 1007 N. John Street
NC Pin # 3600009813); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, after

receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has approved the sale at the February 6, 2024 Board meeting and then
conducted the upset bid process; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in the
amount of $ 1, 980. 00 ( One Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty Dollars and no/ 100) from Community Technical

Assistance, Inc. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares the properties as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General

Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to
convey the property to the Offeror. 

4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred
and recorded. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 6' day of May, 2024. 

Attested by: 

AA - 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

d

Charles Gay or, IV
yor







��������������	
 ������������

������������������������ !"������������������#$��	%�&''(&)*������%�+�� &�&

,-./0�123/4. 567867975�:;:8;<7�=>1?4.�2@�A2BCDE2F2��������,-./0�123/4. GHIJKLMNOOHPQ�RSIHTU ��=VWXYZ;�<[9999\]̂ <_̀ à�R�bcdR�ef ghNfU�MiRjk�jl�mman_amompm̀ ` � � jl�RcU�_ò `̀ m̀̀ `̀ _̀ _̀qciRfrsjlt�NluNhcGtv�fNw�x_̀ ỳz�qjfr�{�|chle}cGc�x_̀ ỳ������� qNGl�Rc~�_�S��_�GH�PQ�rHPKU�ò _��fP��rHPKU�ò op R�bcdR�ef _~̀`̀ �̀hf � eGq���NOOKP�TH�����SL�̀_�̀ _�qtRfGNh�}iejRtee�ljefGjqf fs{_o qj{̀_�G{̀ t̀w{m Nf{ hNef�NqfjcR�ò _à ao�12/D4F314?2/�C04-?B >-F�04��-B30 � C0=F01?-4?2/ 12FF0B-4?2/�2@��-B30424-B�=2?/4��-B30 �E3?BC?/A�-C�3D4>0/4DfcfNh�NlbiefvtRf�NqfcGfcfNh�kiNhjfr�jRltw �ietvcl t��~NKHP kiNh }NetGNft GqRtr}Nr} qGtltRqt�fc �_̀ `̀ � � � � � � ��|ccl �C0=F��E3?BC?/A��-B30���1-FC `frgtU�ejR|ht��Nvjhr�GtejltRfjNh �efrhtU��� C0=F��2E6�@��-B30���1-FC `>-F�04�B-/C��-B30���1-FC _z��̀424-B�>-F�04��-B30���1-FC _z��̀424-B�-==F-?D0C��-B30���1-FC _z��̀424-B�-==F-?D0C��-B30���=-F10B _z��̀424-B�=F0D0/4�3D0��-B30���=-F10B `424-B��-B30�C0@0FF0C���=-F10B `424-B�4-�-EB0��-B30���=-F10B�� _z��̀=F?2F}ijhljR|�uNhit `c}w��uNhit `hNRl�uNhit _z��̀gGtetRf�iet�uNhit `lt�tGGtl�uNhit `fcfNh�uNhit _z��̀=0F>?4qclt lNft Rcft Riv}tG NvciRfGcifU�sfGedlU D-B0D�C-4-2@@�F012FC C-40 C00C4.=0 �63�6? ?/C?1-40�D-B0D=F?10E22� =-A0 >2.Fò��n ǹ�m _̀ ò __ sl q j `_̀��n ǹmm ___��� sl i j ``̀ amt `̀ pp _ _�̀ _ sl i j `dtNftl�NGtN��/240D�D3E-F0-4.=0 AD-F0- � F=B1D@?F0=B-10 � �D3E-F0-424-BD �� �12C0�3-B?4.C0D1F?=4?2/123/4B4�,4�3/?4D 3/?4=F?10 2F?A��12/C EBCA� D?�0@-14 -.E0.E -//�C0=F-40 2�F �12/C 2E6�@�C0=F��-B30424-B�2E6�@��-B30 `E3?BC?/A�C?>0/D?2/D����B-/C�?/@2F>-4?2/�?A�0D4-/C�E0D43D0 3D012C0 B21-B�2/?/A @F2/4-A0C0=4� C0=4�6�D?�0 B/C>2C 12/C@-14 24�0F�-C�3D4>0/4D-/C�/240D��F@���-1���B1��42��24 F2-C4.=0 B-/C3/?4=F?10 424-BB-/C3/?4D 3/44.= 424-B-C�D4 -C�3D40C3/?4�=F?10 B-/C�-B30 2�0FF?C0�-B30 B-/C/240D_̀̀ ` _̀̀ ` G{� p� _�̀ _~̀ǹ ` o _~̀`̀ `�� � p̀ ~̀` p�~̀`̀ �� _~̀ǹ p_~ò _�a� �̀424-B�>-F�04�B-/C�C-4- � � _z��̀ �424-B�=F0D0/4�3D0�C-4- � � ��



N



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- - 5 6

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS

REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A- 269

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 1310 N. Carolina
Street ( NC Pin # 2690818722); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, after

receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has approved the sale at the February 6, 2024 Board meeting and then
conducted the upset bid process; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in the
amount of $ 2, 350. 00 ( Two Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Dollars and no/ 100) from Community Technical

Assistance, Inc. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares the properties as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General

Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to convey
the property to the Offeror. 

4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred
and recorded. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
6t' 

day of May, 2024. 

Attested by: 

I-U 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, IV

Mayor







�����������	
��� �������������

���������������������� �!"#$�������������������%&���'��(�
))*�����'+�� )�)

,-./0�123/4. 567867975�:;9<;55�=>,-./0�123/4.�?��������1@4.�2A�B2CDEF2G2 HIJKLMNOPPIQR�STJIUV ��=WXYZ[;�7:<9\]\877_̂̂ �̀S�aOHbcdSO�ef gcOfV�NhSdi�dj�kll̂ mnopmmqq̀ � � dj�SbV�̂p̀ `̀ ǹl̀ _̀̀ k̀abhSfrsdjt�OjuOcbHtv�fOw�x̂`̀ yz�adfr�{�|bcje}bHb�x̂`̀ y������� aOHj�Sb~�̂�T��̂ �HI�QR�rIQLV�p̀ ô�fQ��rIQLV�p̀ pk cf�pq�bHvbSj�OSStw ~̂̀`̀ �̀cf � eHa���OPPLQ�UI�����m̀ �TM�̀ p̂̀ �̂SbHf�edjt�b��fbsS fs{̂p ad{̀ �̂H{̀ t̀w{p Of{ cOef�OafdbS�p̀ n̂̀ npo12/E4G314@2/�D04-@C >-G�04��-C30 � D0=G01@-4@2/ 12GG0C-4@2/�2A��-C30424-C�=2@/4��-C30 �F3@CD@/B�-D�3E4>0/4EfbfOc�Oj�hefvtSf�OafbHfbfOc�ihOcdfr�dSjtw �hetvbj t��~OLIQ ihOc }OetHOft HaStr}Or} aHtjtSat�fb �`̂ `̀ � � � � � � ��|bbj �D0=G��F3@CD@/B��-C30���1-GD `frgtV�edS|ct��Ovdcr�HtedjtSfdOc �efrctV��� D0=G��2F6�A��-C30���1-GD `>-G�04�C-/D��-C30���1-GD pz_q̀424-C�>-G�04��-C30���1-GD pz_q̀424-C�-==G-@E0D��-C30���1-GD pz_q̀424-C�-==G-@E0D��-C30���=-G10C pz_q̀424-C�=G0E0/4�3E0��-C30���=-G10C `424-C��-C30�D0A0GG0D���=-G10C `424-C�4-�-FC0��-C30���=-G10C�� pz_q̀=G@2G}hdcjdS|�uOcht `b}w��uOcht `cOSj�uOcht pz_q̀gHtetSf�het�uOcht `jt�tHHtj�uOcht `fbfOc�uOcht pz_q̀=0G>@4abjt jOft Sbft Shv}tH OvbhSfHbhfV�sfHe�jV E-C0E�D-4-2AA�G012GD D-40 D00D4.=0 �63�6@ @/D@1-40�E-C0E=G@10F22� =-B0 >2.G_̀̂ mo q̀kl n p̀ q̂ sj a u ``̂ q_m l̀nm q ôom sj h d pm̀ `̀`̂ _kp _̀ol l ôop sj h d pq̀ `̀`̂ ^̂ n `̂ mp ^ ôlq � h d k̀ `̀�tOftj�OHtO��/240ESts�sbbj�edjdS|���|Oe�gOa�bH�̂oôp̂Ǹ_{�et�}hHStj{Sb�uOcht�et�|bSt��bH�p̀ q̀E3F-G0-4.=0 BE-G0- � G=C1EA@G0=C-10 � �E3F-G0-424-CE �� �12D0�3-C@4.D0E1G@=4@2/123/4C4�,4�3/@4E 3/@4=G@10 2G@B��12/D FCDB� E@�0A-14 -.F0.F -//�D0=G-40 2�G �12/D 2F6�A�D0=G��-C30424-C�2F6�A��-C30 `F3@CD@/B�D@>0/E@2/E����C-/D�@/A2G>-4@2/�@B�0E4-/D�F0E43E0 3E012D0 C21-C�2/@/B AG2/4-B0D0=4� D0=4�6�E@�0 C/D>2D 12/DA-14 24�0G�-D�3E4>0/4E-/D�/240E��GA���-1���C1��42��24 G2-D4.=0 C-/D3/@4=G@10 424-CC-/D3/@4E 3/44.= 424-C-D�E4 -D�3E40D3/@4�=G@10 C-/D�-C30 2�0GG@D0�-C30 C-/D/240E`̂ `̀ `̂ `̀ H{m q̀ p̂n ~̀ok̀ ` p ~̂̀`̀ `� � q̀ ~̀` q̀ ~̀`̀ �� ~̀ok̀ kn~̀` p_q̀ �̀424-C�>-G�04�C-/D�D-4- � � pz_q̀ �424-C�=G0E0/4�3E0�D-4- � � ��



O



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 4r7

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns certain real property at 114 S. Slocumb Street ( Pin

3509144522); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell real property by upset
bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of
5, 000.00 ( Five Thousand Dollars and no/100) submitted by TWB Property Services, Inc. (Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the amount of

250. 00 ( Two Hundred Fifty Dollars and No/ 100). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1) The City council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of

North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of general

circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and

shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 
4) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to the

office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal business
hours within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10 -day period, the

Finance Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new offer. If there
is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

5) Upset offer and deposit shall be delivered in a sealed envelope. The written offer proposal must include

the name of the person or business making the offer, address of said property, and Wayne County parcel
identification number. The offer shall be signed by the individual or person with signature authority if a
business entity. The outside of the sealed envelope should have the address of the property, the words

Upset Bid" and include the address of the Property. 
6) The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to reject any or all offers at any time. 
7) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be

published, and shall continue to do so until a 10 -day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid
having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City Council. 

8) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent ( 10%) of the first

1, 000. 00 of that existing offer and five percent ( 5%) of the remainder of that existing offer. 
9) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent ( 5%) of the

bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier' s check, or certified check. The city will return the deposit
on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid
is received; provided that sufficient time has elapsed to allow for the payment draft, if by check, to clear

the City' s central depository and be credited to such, the return of the deposit will then be issued within
10 days of confirmation of clearing. The city will refund the deposit of the final high bidder at closing or
apply to the sales price, as determined at the time of closing by the Finance Director. 

10) Any Offeror' s bid deposit shall be refunded if it is not the final high bidder; or if mutually agreeable
terms cannot be settled upon if no upset bids are received, provided that sufficient time has elapsed to

allow for the payment draft, if by check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such. 
Refund will be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. 



11) The terms of the final sale are: 

a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30
days after the final upset bid period has passed. 

b) Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
c) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

12) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

13) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby
accepted. The appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the instruments necessary to convey the
property to Offeror. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 6' day of May, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, I

Mayor







�����������	
��� �������������

���������������������� �!"#$�������������������%&���'�()�
)�*�����'+�� (�(

,-./0�123/4. 567867975�:;<9;75�=>1?4.�2@�A2BCDE2F2�� GHIJKLMNOOHPQ�RSIHTU ��=VWXYZ;�<[9\]55[77^̂ _�̀�̀abcdef�̀g haNgU�MdRij�ik�lmnopop̂ q̂ rqm � � ik�RbU�̂qmmmmm_mmrmm̂cbdRgstiku�NkvNabGue�gNw�x̂mmyz�cigs�{�|bak̀ fbGb�x̂mmy������� cNGk�Rb}�̂�S~�̂ �GH�PQ�sHPKU�qm̂ n�gP��sHPKU�qmq_ ^̂ q{̂ _̂�̀�̀abcdef�̀g }̂mmmm�ag � G̀c���NOOKP�TH�����pm�SL�m̂ _mr�̀bdg�̀ iku gt{̂q ci{m̂ �G{mmuw{l Ng{ aǸ g�NcgibR�qm̂ nmpq_12/D4F314?2/�C04-?B >-F�04��-B30 � C0=F01?-4?2/ 12FF0B-4?2/�2@��-B30424-B�=2?/4��-B30 �E3?BC?/A�-C�3D4>0/4DgbgNa�Nk�d̀ geuRg�NcgbGgbgNa�jdNaigs�iRkuw �d̀ uebk u~~}NKHP jdNa fǸ uGNgu GcRusfNsf cGukuRcu�gb �m̂ mm � � � � � � ��|bbk �C0=F��E3?BC?/A��-B30���1-FC mgshuU�cbeeuGciNa �g̀sauU��� C0=F��2E6�@��-B30���1-FC m>-F�04�B-/C��-B30���1-FC lzqqm424-B�>-F�04��-B30���1-FC lzqqm424-B�-==F-?D0C��-B30���1-FC lzqqm424-B�-==F-?D0C��-B30���=-F10B lzqqm424-B�=F0D0/4�3D0��-B30���=-F10B m424-B��-B30�C0@0FF0C���=-F10B m424-B�4-�-EB0��-B30���=-F10B�� lzqqm=F?2FfdiakiR|�vNadu mbfw��vNadu maNRk�vNadu lzqqmhGù uRg�d̀ u�vNadu mku�uGGuk�vNadu mgbgNa�vNadu lzqqm=0F>?4cbku kNgu Rbgu RdefuG NebdRgGbdgU�tgG̀ �kU D-B0D�C-4-2@@�F012FC C-40 C00C4.=0 �63�6? ?/C?1-40�D-B0D=F?10E22� =-A0 >2.Fmr__q molo l qm̂ n tk i v plmmmqrm̂ momq r qmml tk d i m̂mmmmmnon �̂̂ ^ n̂m̂ tk d v mmmnon mmn̂ ^ n̂on tk d i m�uNguk�NGuN��/240Dfak|�hbbG�cRkgRĥ {̂mo�kueb��bG�qmm�D3E-F0-4.=0 AD-F0- � F=B1D@?F0=B-10 � �D3E-F0-424-BD �� �12C0�3-B?4.C0D1F?=4?2/123/4B4�,4�3/?4D 3/?4=F?10 2F?A��12/C EBCA� D?�0@-14 -.E0.E -//�C0=F-40 2�F �12/C 2E6�@�C0=F��-B30424-B�2E6�@��-B30 mE3?BC?/A�C?>0/D?2/D����B-/C�?/@2F>-4?2/�?A�0D4-/C�E0D43D0 3D012C0 B21-B�2/?/A @F2/4-A0C0=4� C0=4�6�D?�0 B/C>2C 12/C@-14 24�0F�-C�3D4>0/4D-/C�/240D��F@���-1���B1��42��24 F2-C4.=0 B-/C3/?4=F?10 424-BB-/C3/?4D 3/44.= 424-B-C�D4 -C�3D40C3/?4�=F?10 B-/C�-B30 2�0FF?C0�-B30 B-/C/240Dm̂mm m̂mm G{p ol qm̂ }̂momm q }̂mmmm� � pl}mm ol}mmm �� }̂mom pn}ll lq̂ p ��424-B�>-F�04�B-/C�C-4- � � lzqqm�424-B�=F0D0/4�3D0�C-4- � � ��



P



O

ct + _ 

O

W

ct

s. 

w

A

O

Uct
O

N

4

U

ap 

Q

cl}.

Z

N

O

o

a

Iq

o

vi

cd > 

cn

O

W

4

U

u

N

4. 

Y

c3C

U

U

O

N

K

p

C

A

O

bq

p

y  

w

NO

V

Y

v

r

o

o

3

o

o

r -

d

o

N

E

V

U

V

o

0

0

0

0

Cl

0

0 . 

O

Cd

N  ""' 

U

C 

a: 

U `

Y

U >> + 

U

0  

y = - 

N

N

N

r

N ( 

O

W

NN
O

r, 

N

U

U

y

d  

Q >, 

ellzEoq
6n

bA

bA

Z

W

O

s0. 

N

3

U

4: 

0

0

C

0

0

0

N

W

i11

A

N+ 

O

i 

iQr

O = 

p3

fl + 

C 

U

ii

N

N

N

N4
a

rA

U%

o

W

ct

Gon

cu

o -

o11-

4cn

W

a

n

p

N

Q) 

N

y >, % 

WEy

O

W

O

b

d

Y

O

bA

N

ai

bA > 

Y

U

O

W6,

O

Z

w

U . 

Q

Q. 

O

aCi

a°

i

ami

p

N . 

i

CQ
O

O

Q

69

cC

N

N

ani

o

0

o

p

D

to

ct

W

W

y

U

y

a

w

o .

Q

v

cz

3CC=))
o °' 

O

o

o ;

a

o'

er '

v

any

vbb
w

cn O

0

cz

U

s. 

4

U



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April 16, 2024 
 

 
To: Goldsboro Fire Department 

Attn- Jhante Reyes 
 

 
Thank you for your interest in the Summer Fire Camp Grant. This letter is to inform you that your 

application has been accepted and you have been awarded the OSFM/BCBS grant in the amount 

of $ 17,500 

I know that our youth are play a vital role in the future of the fire service. I would like to personally thank 

you for creating an amazing program to enrich the lives of our future firefighters and taking an active 

approach in your community. 

My team and I would love the opportunity to visit your camp and watch your department in action with 

the kids if possible. 

You will be receiving a phone call from my assistant or someone at OSFM to make sure we have all 

proper documentation so that you may receive your funds. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Heather Roegner at 919-647-0002. 
 

 
Thank you for all you do. 

 

 
Respectfully, 

 
 

 
State Fire Marshal 



Q



O

cC

cz

p

0

q

s0. 

q

C8

O

d

o

0

o

S

S

O

17, 

p .

fl

cqG

bD

p

b

E ' 

o

p

ai

O > > 

O

4- 

N

on

jTy ^ 

O

0 >, 

p

M 

n

v

o

0

0

0o

r

7

o

pp

U

O

0

O

Q+ 

y

S

06

4-, 

y '

O

04 _ 

h

M 

G

oo

t 

vi ,.. 

G

0
i

p

M

oo

C

p

U

O ,

fl

01

O

o0
l 

M

O

o0 

D

M

O

oo
l 

M

O

o0 

O

M

y .• 

fy

N
f{ 

O

h

oo [ 

a 

000

N

fy

O
V

oo
l 

O

U

N

a 

d

srj '. 

ds

W

A > 

O

g

O '

dCdO
q  

1•/

J

W

W

s0, 

i

O" '

S

nryt? 
CCO

5pO 

S

pO

r

r—

MO'

t

oo

S

CV

S

W

O

M

O

N

Irl

Cd

oo

r

c

N

o

v

oo

r

o

i

V

O

O

O  

U    

M

N

vi   

vi  .

o

vi

O+    •  

4. tn t

Z

W

A

a`

i

ani

l >, 

to

N

OF
Q

w

cd

Z

E' 

p`

P"

C3

p

i0C

a

q

2

O. 

lyi

IZ

O" 

p, '

C (

Ty

O

p

Gni

O

Zai .
d > 

N

10

t4

0•

V

O > 

Nou

a ° 

q

0

H

c .

d

y

N

O

O

o

o

yl

0. 

WW

ami ,, 

ao'
oa .
14 .

14 ,+ 

U

p

on

o  

o. 

mp

Ga

a 

Ow
o

fs, 

Y

IS

w

v

w

d

y

Y

y

fi] 

0

d

p 

000

cnazx3 ... 
a

N

E

q, 

p

W

p

q

y

c

cn

2

v, 

V) 

cn

cn

vi

v 

v 

cn

q

4: 

N

O

3

p

Q

v

CG

oo. ¢ 

g

ai

U

4r

p '  .

5

y ` 

i

sv.  

ami • 

W

W

W

W

W

W [

i] 

W

W

W   

q = 

a

aq

gggwwaa

on

on

U

y

4

u

d

1.

4U



R



y

3  

o

z

y  

I06
I

I

06

I6

H

UU

O

oobUA

W

C   

O  • . 

O ' 

3 . 

U  

U

d

c 

po

rn

o

pp

p

a` 

N

03N  

N

06

M

00

N
l 

00

W

a

O

O

y0

bA

cd

U

cn

sR

vs

sz

p, 

c

0

r- 

C

OO

W

OO

aS

V
cn

rv1

0

0

pO

N

OM

M

JO [ 

W

d 

c •,:-, 

c 

p

a> '

G

o

v, 

ok 

o

G

0

00

rl

lcc
N

N

to

oo

M

M

If1

7

C 

Ct

C.

5

d

z

U00
cnQ, 

cl

O

d °_' °

cam
03

0

to

UQ 

o

oma" 

84

bA

O   

a

c

a     . 

W

o '• - 

p  

a 

QQQQ
F

wa
B

QF , 

3s4

U

b

a

aOCIO

c 

U

Q

U



S

cgwynn
Typewritten Text
4/28/24



d

Q

U

1

00 -

d ;> 

th03
0

0

3 ' 

4)

00. 

o

b

0 

o

o

0

0

0

to

0

Q¢ ' 

Z

o '

y

3 °

1p

O

o

0

o

won

0

0. —

03

o

4 ° 

0

3

o

A

g

0

0

0

Q.

7 ° 

0

4..

i

Q" (

1)

a

b

C 

O

O

O

S  

N

04

p¢„ 

y

O

0

U

Sr

0

N

N

N

N

U

O
X., 

U

cd

Q

8

U

0,

0 ° 

3

o

o

O

0

U

ds

s9

c

ds

y

o

0

b

O

a

b

o°

n -

o

0 

00

0

o

U '

C

cC

0

COCIOO

Y

U

bin

0

CO

N

4 , 

U

O

9

O

W

OO
N

U

N -

0  

O

o

Q. 

0

b 

w ° 

a

o

0

C* ° 

aU

x. -

O

U

W

U

o

U

0 '

0. 

N

y

Y

O

Q. 

V

M

N

0Wq

p

oEl
a Cfsi

0Cd
T

vow

Nl

4--

0440Q44r
O ' 

0. 

c. 

O

04

N }" 

N

N

O

tO

0

3

Y

H

2 .

O

U

0

0! 

O

0  

GJ

0

V

U

4

cd

0. >' 

C

U

U

S-

4

0

rcz

0

w

a" -

o ° 

A

A

Z

o >  °  

ci0

d

U

corn

ate' 

a

cd

U

Oryx

0

E= 

o

a

Z . -

d- 

CO

Cd

u

Q. 

Z

H

r/ 

a 

N

M

d

4, 

U

QOP.

Ss, 

a°

i

H

z

ww.

p

3

0o '.

OW

v

O

O •

O

p

o

O

v

O

N

yam. 

CU

CO >, - 

t+ 

p

0

0

O

U

U

as

O

O

O

0

0

c

a>

Q' 

o

g

u

m

W

M

0

0

5

A

3

A

on

o

O

CA

i

w 

0

0op)
0 

OIJ

b

0 ° 

7d

14-

1

U

c

EqCA

4° 

0

0

bz

ti

C6O

m

O

z

w

04)= 

CZ

to

W

H

o

o

U

Q, 0

CA

o

oa. 

0

0

uCD

OW

W

Pm

Oo, 

0

0

N

UW

A

p

0

U

rA

o

FQ

O

t

0E

OU

0 

0

o

v

M

Wx

0

0

0

0oo

10, 

y

0

a

Cd

Ecd

0

0

Ucz
x

Y

o

to

3

W

L

U

on

M

m

y

Co0. 

C* 

0

C

fes] 

O

o

v' 

C

yW

0CZ
iiiW

y

0

4

On
O

0

0. 

b

b

m

oU

a0

C;, 

cz

d

Q

U

1

00 -

d ;> 

th03

0

0

3 ' 

4)

00. 

o

b

0 

o

o

0

0

0

to

0

Q¢ ' 

Z

o '

y

3 °

1p

O

o

0

o

won

0

0. —

03

o

4 ° 

0

3

o

A

g

0

0

0

Q.

7 ° 

0

4..

i

Q" (

1)

a

b

C 

O

O

O

S  

N

04

p¢„ 

y

O

0

U

Sr

0

N

N

N

N

U

O
X., 

U

cd

Q

8

U

0,

0 ° 

3

o

o

O

0

U

ds

s9

c

ds

y

o

0

b

O

a

b

o°

n -

o

0 

00

0

o

U '

C

cC

0

COCIO
O

Y

U

bin

0

CO

N

4 , 

U

O

9

O

W

OO

N

U

N -

0  

O

o

Q. 

0

b 

w ° 

a

o

0

C* ° 

aU

x. -

O

U

W

U

o

U

0 '

0. 

N

y

Y

O

Q. 

V

M

N

0Wq

p

oEl

a 

Cfsi

0Cd

T

vow

Nl

4--

0440Q44r

O ' 

0. 

c. 

O

04

N }" 

N

N

O

tO

0

3

Y

H

2 .

O

U

0

0! 

O

0  

GJ

0

V

U

4

cd

0. >' 

C

U

U

S-

4

0

rcz

0

w

a" -

o ° 

A

A

Z

o >  °  

ci0

d

U

corn

ate' 

a

cd

U

Oryx

0

E= 

o

a

Z . -

d- 

CO

Cd

u

Q. 

Z

H

r/ 

a 

N

M

d

4, 

U

QOP.

Ss, 

a°

i

H

z

ww.

p

3

0o '.

OW

v

O

O •

O

p

o

O

v

O

N



0

7ƒ 

k

k

2 / 

7

Q)/ 

E

U 

d

J

e>

1

o

u

w§ 

u7

2

7

a •» 

a

A ) 

y
k

Q

d

am

y
k

QU



AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 1 of 11 

North Carolina Department of Public Safety Directed Grants Agreement 
 

AGREEMENT # CITY OF GOLDSBORO 2023-2024 
FY 2023 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY DISASTER RELIEF AND 

RECOVERY/MITIGATION/RESILIENCY DIRECTED GRANT, NC APPROPRIATIONS ACT OF 
2023, HOUSE BILL 259, SECTION 5.3(a)-(c) & SECTION 5.6(a)-(l) 

 
This Agreement is hereby entered into by and between the Department of Public Safety (the "AGENCY") and the 
City of Goldsboro (the "RECIPIENT") (referred to collectively as the “Parties”).  The RECIPIENT’s federal tax 
identification number is 56-6000228. 
 
1. PURPOSE & AUTHORITY  
 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to establish roles, responsibilities and procedures to 
implement the terms and conditions of the FY 2024 Department of Public Safety Disaster Relief and 
Recovery/Mitigation/Resiliency Directed Grant, NC Appropriations Act of 2023, House Bill 259 , Sections 
5.3(a)-(c) and 5.6(a)-(l). The purpose of this grant is to provide directed grants to non-state entities established in 
accordance with appropriations contained in Session Law 2023-134 (HB 259) for disaster relief, recovery, 
mitigation, and resiliency.  
 
This grant award and MOA are authorized under the provisions of: (1) NC Appropriations Act of 2023, House 
Bill 259 / SL 2023-134. The funds awarded under this grant must be used in compliance with all applicable federal, 
state, local and tribal laws, and regulations, including N.C.G.S. §§ 143C-6-21, 143C-6-22, 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 
03M, and for governmental entities and public authorities subject to the Local Government Commission (LCG), 
N.C.G.S. Chapter 159 and 20 NCAC 03.  By accepting this award, RECIPIENT agrees to use these funds in a 
manner consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 

 
2. EFFECTIVE TERM & PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 

 
This Agreement shall become effective upon signature by the Parties and this agreement shall terminate on June 
30, 2028.  Notwithstanding the effective date of this agreement, the period of performance (POP) for this 
directed grant is retroactive to July 1, 2023, the first day of state fiscal year 23-24, and the last day of the POP is 
June 30, 2028, the last day of state fiscal year 27-28 (Section 5.6(l)). Recipient must expend or encumber all 
directed grant funds within the POP.  Expend or encumber are defined in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143C-1-1, which is 
incorporated here by reference.  Unless otherwise expressly authorized by AGENCY, any directed grant funds 
not expended or encumbered within the POP must be returned by RECIPIENT to AGENCY within 30 days 
of the end of the POP.  

 
3. DEFINITIONS  
 

 Closeout: the final grant stage where, after completion of the scope of work, the RECIPIENT submits 
supporting documentation to AGENCY that funds have been expended consistent with their purpose in 
a fiscally responsible manner and the AGENCY administratively reviews the information and notifies 
RECIPIENT of administrative closing of the grant. See section 14 for closeout requirements.  

 Directed Grant: legislatively directed grants to non-state entities. These grants provide a specific amount 
of state funds be directed to a named organization for a purpose described in the appropriations act in 
which the grant was included.  

 Monitoring: The process of ensuring State funds are used responsibility and according to their purpose 
which involves a system of educating, reviewing, tracking, and reporting on the use of grant funds.   

 Level I: A recipient or subrecipient that receives, holds, uses, or expends State financial assistance in an 
amount less than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) within its fiscal year. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F

https://www.ncleg.gov/Sessions/2023/Bills/House/PDF/H259v7.pdf
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-1-1.html


AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 2 of 11 

 Level II: A recipient or subrecipient that receives, holds, uses, or expends State financial assistance in an 
amount of at least twenty-five thousand ($25,000) or greater, but less than five hundred thousand dollars 
($500,000) within its fiscal year. 

 Level III A recipient or subrecipient that receives, holds, uses, or expends State financial assistance in an 
amount equal to or greater than five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) within its fiscal year. 

 Non-Compliance: failure by the grant awardee to follow the terms of this agreement, applicable federal or 
state law, and/or to use funds inconsistently with the purpose of the directed grant as defined by the 
General Assembly. See section 7 – Monitoring and Auditing.  

 General Assembly: the bicameral legislature of the State of North Carolina, consisting of the State House 
of Representatives and State Senate.   

 Encumbrance: As defined by the State Budget Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143C-1-1, A financial obligation 
created by a purchase order, contract, salary commitment, unearned or prepaid collections for services 
provided by the State, or other legally binding agreement. 

  Budget: As defined by the State Budget Act, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143C-1-1,  A plan to provide and spend 
money for specified programs, functions, activities, or objects during a fiscal year. 
 

4. RECIPIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

The RECIPIENT is responsible for all the following:  
 
Required Documents/Forms  
 
RECIPIENT must submit the following documents to AGENCY upon execution of this MOA: 
 
i. W-9 (09 NCAC 03M .0202) 
ii. Electronic Payment / Vendor Verification Form (09 NCAC 03M .0202) 
iii. Conflict of Interest Policy (G.S. 143C-6-23. (b)) 
iv. Sworn (Notarized) No Overdue Tax Debt Certification (G.S. 143C-6-23.(c)) 
 
Scope of Work and Budget (Attachment A) 
 
RECIPIENT must provide a Scope of Work & Budget to AGENCY, and the Scope of Work & Budget must be 
approved by AGENCY before AGENCY can release any funds to RECIPIENT under this agreement.   
 
The Scope of Work clearly and concisely defines the specific project(s) to be completed with the directed grant 
funds in this agreement, identifies the gaps and/or priorities addressed by the project(s), and provides the timeline 
and budget for the project(s).  RECIPIENT is required to use the funds in the amounts as set forth in 
RECIPIENT’s Budget.  RECIPIENT must submit an amended budget to AGENCY if RECIPIENT wants to 
reallocate and/or redistribute the funds from a previously approved budget.  See Attachment A for Scope of 
Work template including budget.   
 
Quarterly Reports (Attachment B) 
 
The RECIPIENT understands and acknowledges that total funding level available under this agreement will not 
exceed the amount allocated by the General Assembly $2,000,000.00. 
 
RECIPIENT must submit a Quarterly Report (90-day) to AGENCY for every quarter of the POP.  Quarterly 
reports are due within 15 calendar days of the end of each quarter as follows: 
 

☐ 1st July 01 – September 30 (Due October 15) 

☐ 2nd October 01 to December 31 (Due January 15) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F

https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-1-1.html
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-1-1.html
https://ncadmin.nc.gov/vendor-electronic-payment-form
https://files.nc.gov/ncdps/documents/files/100-Certification-of-No-Overdue-Tax-Debt.pdf


AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 3 of 11 

☐ 3rd January 01 to March 31 (Due April 15) 

☐ 4th April 01 to June 30 (Due July 15) 
  
Quarterly reports shall at a minimum include: 
 
i. Period stating beginning balance of the Project Fund. 
ii. Total expenses disbursed (aggregate totals) by the following project uses: 
  a. Employee Expenses (e.g., program related staffing). 
  b. Service and Contract expenses (e.g., utilities, telephone, data, lease related expenses). 
  c. Goods (e.g., supplies and equipment) expenses. 
  d. Administration Expenses (e.g., overhead & project management). 
  e. Other expenses (e.g., related charges not assigned above and described by RECIPIENT). 
iii. Period ending balance of the RECIPIENT funding disbursed pursuant to this agreement. 
iv. A descriptive summary of how the funds were used including outcomes and specific deliverables. 
or accomplishments to date. 
v. Attachment B is a copy of the quarterly report. 
vii. Quarterly reports shall be email: michael.grant@ncdps.gov  
 
 
 
Request for Payment (Attachment B) 
 

RECIPIENT must submit requests for payment of funds to AGENCY with all required documentation attached 
for $500,000.00 distributed quarterly, not to exceed a total of $2,000,000.00. Once AGENCY is satisfied that 
RECIPIENT has provided all required documentation, the requested distributions can be processed for payment. 
The distributions of funds will be coded to cost center(s) 206631 56601573 1901176 in the North Carolina Financial 
System (NCFS). 
 
RECIPIENT shall complete a “Request for Payment of Appropriation(s) from North Carolina General Fund” 
each quarter and submit to AGENCY, along with all required documentation.  Funds will be paid quarterly after 
AGENCY receives all required documentation, including quarterly reports.  See Attachment B for request for 
payment template. 

 
     Other Conditions 
 

Pursuant to N.C.G.S 143C-1-1, the RECIPIENT understands and agrees that agreement funding shall be subject 
to the availability of appropriated funds.  However, in the event of agreement termination due to lack of 
adequate appropriated funds, the AGENCY will ensure that it will pay for services and goods acquired and 
obligated on or before the notice of agreement termination.  
 

 
RECIPIENT must complete any procurement(s) and expenditures no later than the end of the POP on June 30, 
2028 (Section 5.6(l)). Funds allocated in this section that are not expended or encumbered by June 30, 2028, shall 
revert to the State Emergency Response and Disaster Relief Reserve. 
 
 
No Match Requirement. RECIPIENT is not required to provide matching funds in cash or in-kind for this 
award. 

 
 Indirect Costs. No indirect costs will be charged to this award. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F

mailto:michael.grant@ncdps.gov
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-A/chapter-II/part-200/subpart-E/subject-group-ECFRd93f2a98b1f6455/section-200.414


AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 4 of 11 

 Municipalities, counties, and other entities subject to the Local Government Commission will follow the Local   
 Government Finance Act, N.C.G.S. 159-34.  
 

Directed grants to nonprofit organizations are for nonsectarian, nonreligious purposes only (S.L. 2022-74, Sec. 
5.3(b)5).   

 
Compliance 
 
RECIPIENT understands and acknowledges required compliance with all applicable statutory provisions outlined 
in N.C.G.S. 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M .0205, Minimum Reporting Requirements for Recipients and 
Subrecipients.  
 
RECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, local and/or tribal statutes, regulations, ordinances, 
licensing requirements, policies, guidelines, reporting requirements, certifications and other regulatory 
matters for the conduct of its business and purchase requirements performed under this MOA. RECIPIENT 
shall be wholly responsible for the purchases made under this MOA and for the supervision of its employees 
and assistants. 

 
 Failure to comply with the specified terms and conditions of this MOA may result in the return of funds and 
 any other remedy for noncompliance specified in 2 CFR 200.339 (incorporated by reference in this MOA), 
 and/or termination of the award per 09 NCAC 03M.0801 and 2 CFR 200.340 (incorporated by reference in 
 this MOA). Additional conditions may also be placed on RECIPIENT for noncompliance with the specified 
 terms and conditions of this MOA, including (but not limited to) additional monitoring and possible placement 
 of RECIPIENT on the Suspension of Funding List (SOFL) maintained by the State Office of State Budget & 

 Management (OSBM). 
 

 Conflict of Interest 
 

Per N.C.G.S. § 143C-6-23(b), RECIPIENT is required to file with AGENCY a copy of RECIPIENT’s policy 
addressing conflicts of interest that may arise involving the grantee's management employees and the members 
of its board of directors or other governing body. The policy shall address situations in which any of these 
individuals may directly or indirectly benefit, except as the grantee's employees or members of its board or other 
governing body, from  the grantee's disbursing of State funds, and shall include actions to be taken by the 
grantee or the individual, or both, to avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance of impropriety. The policy 
shall be filed before AGENCY may disburse any grant funds. 

 
In conjunction with providing the conflict-of-interest policy to AGENCY, RECIPIENT must disclose in 
writing to AGENCY, and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflict of interest that may arise during the 
administration of this grant award. 

 
This includes RECIPIENT’s responsibility to maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of 
interest and governing the actions of their employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of 
contracts or subgrants. No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration 
of a contract or subgrant supported by this grant award if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. 
Such conflicts of interest  would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her 
immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization that employs or is about to employ any of the parties 
indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a 
contract or subgrant. The officers, employees, and agents of the RECIPIENT may neither solicit nor accept 
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or  parties to subcontracts or subgrants. 
RECIPIENT may set standards for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial, or the gift is an 
unsolicited item of nominal value. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F



AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 5 of 11 

The standards of conduct must provide for disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such standards by 
officers, employees, or agents of the RECIPIENT. All RECIPIENTs must disclose in writing to RECIPIENT, 
and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflicts of interest with respect to procurement, contracting, 
subcontracting  and sub-granting with funds provided under this grant award. Upon request, RECIPIENT must 
also provide a copy of  their standards of conduct policy covering conflicts of interest with respect to 
procurement, contracting and subcontracting with funds provided under this grant award. 

 
 State of North Carolina Reporting Requirements per NCGS 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M  

North Carolina state law (N.C.G.S. 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M) requires every nongovernmental entity 
(including non-profit organizations) that receives state or federal pass-through grant funds from state agencies 
to file annual reports on how those grant funds were used no later than three months after the end of the non-
state entity’s fiscal year.  Government entities including counties and local governments are not required 
to file these reports.  

Audit Requirements  

 

 The RECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that, from and after the date of execution of this Agreement and for 
five (5) years following its termination, the books, records, documents, and facilities of the RECIPIENT are 
subject to being audited, inspected, and monitored at any time by the AGENCY upon its request (whether in 
writing or otherwise).  The RECIPIENT further agrees to provide AGENCY staff and staff of the Office of State 
Auditor with access to financial and accounting records to support internal audit, financial reporting, and related 
requirements.  
 

If RECIPIENT is a unit of local government in North Carolina, RECIPIENT may be subject to the audit and 
reporting requirements in N.C.G.S. 159-34, Local Government Finance Act – Annual Independent Audit, rules 
and regulations.  Such audit and reporting requirements may vary depending upon the amount and source of 
grant funding received by the SUBRECIPIENT and are subject to change (see Local Government Commission 
for more information).  See also 20 NCAC 03 (Local Government Commission). 

  

AGENCY’S DUTIES & PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
AGENCY shall ensure that funds allocated and disbursed comply with the intent and guidance from the Office 
of State Budget & Management and ensure compliance with related state statutes and financial management 
standards. 

 
 AGENCY will register all state assistance programs and awards with OSBM as required, and AGENY will 
 comply with the requirements of OSBM's Grants Management System as applicable.  
 

The AGENCY shall pay the RECIPIENT on a quarterly basis with each payment being an equal amount of 
$500,000.00 not to exceed total grant amount of $2,000,000.00. Payment shall be made.  Once the AGENCY is 
satisfied that the RECIPIENT has provided all the required documentation, the requested distributions can be 
processed for payment.  The distributions of funds will be coded to 206631 56601573 1901176. 
 
AGENCY will submit grant monitoring plan(s) to OSBM as required.  

 
AGENCY will provide education and technical assistance to directed grant recipients through one-on-one 
communication, live group events and/or web-based information to provide instruction on required documents 
and the process of receiving grant funds. 
 

5. FUNDS MANAGEMENT   
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F

https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-6-23.html
http://ncrules.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2009%20-%20governor%20and%20lt.%20governor/chapter%2003%20-%20state%20budget%20and%20management/subchapter%20m/subchapter%20m%20rules.pdf
https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/PDF/BySection/Chapter_159/GS_159-34.pdf
https://www.nctreasurer.com/divisions/state-and-local-government-finance/local-government-commission
http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac.asp?folderName=%5CTitle%2020%20-%20State%20Treasurer%5CChapter%2003%20-%20Local%20Government%20Commission
https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-services/grants-management


AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 6 of 11 

Accounting.  RECIPIENT agrees that funds paid through this contract shall be accounted for in a separate fund 
and accounting structure within the RECIPIENT’s central accounting and grant management system.  
RECIPIENT agrees to manage all accounts payable disbursements, check register disbursements and related 
transactions in a detailed manner that supports fully transparent accounting of all financial transactions associated 
with this funding allocations described in Section 3 above.    
 
Travel.  Expenditures for travel mileage, meals, lodging and other travel expenses incurred in the performance of 
this MOA shall be reasonable and supported by documentation.  State rates should be used as guidelines and shall 
not be exceeded. International travel shall not be eligible under this MOA.  
 
Taxes.  No taxes will be charged to this award.  If eligible, SUBRECIPIENT shall: (a) ask the North Carolina 
Department of Revenue for a refund of all sales and use taxes paid by them in the performance of this grant, 
pursuant to N.C.G.S. 105-164.14; and (b) exclude all refundable sales and use taxes from all reported expenditures. 
 
 

6. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATORS 
 
All notices permitted or required to be given by one Party to the other and all questions about the Agreement 
from one Party to the other shall be addressed and delivered to the other Party’s Agreement Administrator.  The 
name, post office address, street address, telephone number, fax number, and email address of the Parties’ 
respective initial Agreement Administrators are set out below.  Either Party may change the name, post office 
address, street address, telephone number, fax number, or email address of its Agreement Administrator by giving 
timely written notice to the other Party. 
 

For the AGENCY 

IF DELIVERED BY US POSTAL SERVICE IF DELIVERED BY ANY OTHER MEANS 

Allis Talley-Burton, Controller 
NC Department of Public Safety 
2000 Yonkers Rd. 
Raleigh, NC27699-4220 
 
Telephone:  919-866-3668 
Fax:             984-920-8887 
Email: allis.talley-burton@ncdps.gov 
 

Allis Talley-Burton, Controller 
NC Department of Public Safety 
2000 Yonkers Rd. 
Raleigh, NC27699-4220 
 
Telephone:  919-866-3668 
Fax:             984-920-8887 
Email: allis.talley-burton@ncdps.gov 
 

 
 

For the RECIPIENT 

IF DELIVERED BY US POSTAL SERVICE IF DELIVERED BY ANY OTHER MEANS 

Matthew S. Livingston, Interim City Manager 
City of Goldsboro 
200 N. Center St. 
P.O. Drawer A 
Goldsboro, NC  27533 
 
Phone:  919-580-4376 
Fax:      919-580-4344 
Email: MLivingston@goldsboronc.gov  
 

Matthew S. Livingston, Interim City Manager 
City of Goldsboro 
200 N. Center St. 
P.O. Drawer A 
Goldsboro, NC  27533 
 
Phone:  919-580-4376 
Fax:      919-580-4344 
Email: MLivingston@goldsboronc.gov  
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F

https://ncleg.net/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/BySection/Chapter_105/GS_105-164.14.html
mailto:allis.talley-burton@ncdps.gov
mailto:allis.talley-burton@ncdps.gov
mailto:MLivingston@goldsboronc.gov
mailto:MLivingston@goldsboronc.gov


AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 7 of 11 

7. MONITORING AND AUDITING 
 
RECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that, from and after the date of execution of this Agreement and for five 
(5) years following its termination, the books, records, documents, and facilities of the RECIPIENT are subject 
to being audited, inspected, and monitored at any time by the AGENCY upon its request (whether in writing or 
otherwise).  The RECIPIENT further agrees to provide AGENCY staff and staff of the Office of State Auditor 
with access to financial and accounting records to support internal audit, financial reporting, and related 
requirements.  

 
AGENCY is required by law to monitor and oversee directed grant funds to ensure State financial assistance is 
spent consistent with the purposes for which it was awarded, 09 N.C.A.C. 03M.0401, and AGENCY will review 
the documentation provided by RECIPIENT to ensure adequate progress is being made toward achieving project 
goals and objectives.  
 
AGENCY will assess RECIPENT for risk using the factors adopted by Office of State Budget and Management:1 
 
Grant Amount  
Low: Less than or equal to $250,000  
Moderate: Greater than $250,000 or less than $5,000,000  
High: Greater than or equal to $5,000,000  
 
Number of Subrecipients  
Low: 0 Moderate: Less than or equal to 5 High: Greater than 5  
 
Entity Type 
 Low: County, School System Moderate: Municipality, Hospital High: Nonprofit – Construction, Nonprofit-
Other, Other  
 
Other factors  
Other factors such as staff turnover, system changes, audit findings, monitoring issues and prior experience with 
grant recipient may also be considered when accessing the risks. 
 
Based on the combination of those three indicators, grantee recipients will be identified with a risk assessment of 
Low, Moderate or High. 
 
Levels of Monitoring Based on Risk  
 
AGENCY will review financial and performance information for high-risk grantees to ensure each report is 
completed in accordance with the grant agreement and when expenditures are listed, review for allowability.  
 
Based on time availability, AGENCY will select a sample of medium and low risk grant recipients for the same 
review as high-risk recipients. 
 
Noncompliance with Agreement Terms  
 
If RECIPIENT fails to comply with any term of this Agreement but the non-compliance is not the result of 
mismanagement or criminal misuse of funds, AGENCY shall address the non-compliance by  
(1) Communicating the requirements to RECIPIENT.  
(2) Requiring a response from RECIPIENT upon a determination of noncompliance.  
(3)  Suspending payments to the RECIPIENT until RECIPIENT complies. 

                                                           
1 Office of State Budget and Management (OSBM) Recipient Monitoring Plan (May 2022) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F

http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2009%20-%20governor%20and%20lt.%20governor/chapter%2003%20-%20state%20budget%20and%20management/subchapter%20m/09%20ncac%2003m%20.0401.pdf


AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 8 of 11 

 
If RECPIENT fails to correct the non-compliance within 60 days, AGENCY may 
(1) Terminate this Agreement and seek return of unexpended funds or unauthorized expenditures. And 
(2) Offset future payments with any amounts improperly spent. 

 
If RECIPIENT’S non-compliance includes management deficiencies or criminal activity leading to the misuse of 
funds, AGENCY shall notify the Office of State Budget and Management and: 
 (1) Suspend payments until the matter has been fully investigated and corrective action has been taken.  
 (2) Terminate the contract and take action to retrieve unexpended funds or unauthorized expenditures. And 
 (3) Report possible violations of criminal statutes involving misuse of State property to the State Bureau of 
Investigation, in accordance with G.S. 143B-920. 
 

 
8. SITUS  

 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of North Carolina and any claim for breach or enforcement of this 
Agreement shall be filed in State court in Wake County, North Carolina. 
 

 
9. SUBCONTRACTING AND ASSIGNMENT 
 

RECIPIENT will not assign or subcontract without obtaining written approval The RECIPIENT agrees that by 
assigning or subcontracting any work related to the contract to a subcontractor or SUB-RECIPIENT, that such 
entities shall comply with the following: 
 
(a) The RECIPIENT or SUB-RECIPIENT is not relieved of any of the duties and responsibilities of the 

original contract; and 
(b) The SUB-RECIPIENT agrees to abide by the standards contained in this contract and to shall provide all 

information to allow the RECIPIENT to comply with these standards. 
 
RECIPIENT agrees that all SUB-RECIPIENTS to this agreement shall comply with the following provisions of 
the North Carolina Administrative Code: “09 NCAC 03M .0203 SUB-RECIPIENT RESPONSIBILITIES.” 

 
10. ADVERTISING 
 

RECIPIENT agrees not to use the existence of this contract, the name of the AGENCY, the or the name of the 
State of North Carolina as part of any commercial advertising, without prior written approval of the AGENCY. 

 
11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW  

 
The RECIPIENT shall remain an independent RECIPIENT and as such shall be wholly responsible for the scope 
of work to be performed under this Agreement and for the supervision of his employees and assistants. The 
RECIPIENT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required in performing the 
services under this agreement.  Such employees shall not be employees of or have any individual contractual 
relationship with the AGENCY.  The RECIPIENT shall be responsible for compliance with all laws, ordinances, 
codes, rules, regulations, licensing requirements and other regulatory matters that are applicable to the conduct of 
his business and work performance under this Agreement, including those of Federal, State, and local agencies 
having appropriate jurisdiction. 
 
 

12. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F



AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 9 of 11 

This agreement may be terminated by mutual consent upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other party, or as 
otherwise provided by law.  As soon as reasonably possible following termination of this agreement, the amount 
of any residual unexpended or unencumbered funds shall be transferred to the AGENCY. 

 
13. AMENDMENTS  
 

This Agreement may be amended in writing which documents approval of changes by both the AGENCY and 
the RECIPIENT.   

 
 
14. CLOSEOUT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 
Following the principles of 2 CFR 200.344 (incorporated by reference in this MOA), RECIPIENT must submit 
to AGENCY, no later than 90 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance, all financial, 
performance, and other reports as required by the terms and conditions of the grant award, and this MOA. 
 
This includes, at a minimum: 
 
The RECIPIENT agrees to submit to the AGENCY a complete performance and expenditure status report (final 
report) within ninety (90) days after expiration of this agreement June 30, 2028: 
 
1) A complete accounting of how the appropriated funds were used; 
2) A complete performance status report; and 
3) A Certification stating the funds were used for the purpose appropriated (AGENCY will supply template). 

 
The above noted reports shall include RECIPIENT and SUB-RECIPIENT reporting information related to the 
above noted quantitative results and accomplishments.  RECIPIENT and any SUB-RECIPIENTS agree that all 
program activity results information reported shall be subject to review and authentication as described in 
Paragraph 7 and RECIPIENT will provide access to work papers, receipts, invoices and reporting records, if 
requested by the AGENCY, as the AGENCY executes any audit internal audit responsibilities. 
 
RECIPIENT will be deemed noncompliant if its final report is not submitted within the 90-day period stated 
above.  Once the complete final performance and financial status report package has been received and evaluated 
by the AGENCY, the RECIPIENT will receive official notification of agreement close-out.  The letter will inform 
the RECIPIENT that the AGENCY is officially closing the agreement and retaining all agreement files and related 
material for a period of five (5) years or until all audit exceptions have been resolved, whichever is longer. 
 
RECIPIENT agrees to submit to all required closeout documentation (final report) to AGENCY within ninety 
(90) days after expiration of this agreement on June 30, 2028, giving RECIPIENT until September 30, 2028, to 
submit final report. 
 
AGENCY will not release the final fourth quarter payment to RECIPIENT unless/until RECIPIENT has 
submitted all required closeout documentation and AGENCY has approved that documentation. 
 
Performance Reporting 
 
The above noted closeout documentation shall include adequate information from RECIPIENT showing 
qualitative and quantitative results in accomplishing the approved Scope of Work in Attachment A. The purpose 
of this performance reporting is for RECIPIENT to demonstrate exactly how the grant funds were utilized to 
accomplish the approved scope of work, as well the impact of the completed work (to the extent known at the 
time of grant closeout). 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F



AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 10 of 11 

Final Accounting & Supporting Documentation 
 
The above noted closeout documentation must include sufficient documentation that approved expenditures have 
been properly invoiced and paid by RECIPIENT, and that the products and/or services have in fact been received 
by RECIPIENT.  RECIPIENT must provide a final summary of all expenditures funded by this grant.  Summary 
of expenditures should include at a minimum: vendor name, date of purchase, invoice number, total invoice 
amount, and amount paid for with grant funds. 
 
RECIPIENT shall also include all legible and complete invoices and receipts detailing the expenses funded with 
this grant.  The total amount of these invoices and receipts shall be equal to the full amount of the award.   
 
If the total amount of these invoices and receipts exceeds the full amount of the award, RECIPIENT is required 
to clearly indicate the exact amount(s) paid with grant funds, equaling the full amount of the amount.   
 
If the total amount of these invoices and receipts is less than the full amount of the award, AGENCY will reduce 
the final quarterly payment by the amount of the underrun.  If the underrun exceeds the final quarterly payment, 
RECIPIENT will be required to reimburse AGENCY for the amount of the unrecovered underrun within 30 
days of notification by AGENCY. 
  
Invoices, receipts, and associated documentation must contain the following information: 

 Name and address of the vendor or establishment providing the product or service. 
 Vendor/Payee invoice number, account number, and any other unique meaningful identifying 

number. 
 Date the product or service was provided. 
 Itemized description of all products or services. 
 Unit price of products or services (if applicable). 
 Total amount charged. 
 Proof of payment of expenses associated with the project. 

 
15. ATTACHMENTS 

 
All attachments to this Agreement are incorporated as if set out fully herein. 
A. In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the language of this MOA and the attachments 
hereto, the language of the MOA shall be controlling, but only to the extent of such conflict or 
inconsistency. 
B. This MOA includes the following attachments or documents incorporated by reference as if fully set 
out herein: 

 Attachment A - Scope of Work & Budget 
 Attachment B - Quarterly Report & Accounting 
 Attachment C – State Grant Tax Certification 
 Conflict of Interest Policy 

 
 

 
16. AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE WARRANTY 

 
The undersigned represent and warrant that they are authorized to bind their principals to the terms of this 
agreement.  In Witness Whereof, the RECIPIENT and the AGENCY have executed this Agreement in 
duplicate originals, with one original being retained by each party. 

 
 
   

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F



AGREEMENT – City of Goldsboro and DPS 
 
 

 Page 11 of 11 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 

 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature              Date 
 
                  
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name             Title 
 
 
NC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature                                                                                  Date 
 

      Allis Talley-Burton                 Controller 
______________________________________________________________________________________    
Printed Name             Title 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F5B2A0D4-C6BE-4CE5-811B-0B591FDF8B8F

Interim City Manager

2/23/2024 | 05:32:49 PST

Matthew S. Livingston

2/23/2024 | 08:48:47 EST



T



cn

C

N '

C

C) 

O '

O  

U '

C

Cd

0i

cn

un

p

V

Cd

Q

s., °

Cd

W

bo

CA

cn

CA >, 

co

NO

U"" 

C

o `

i' 

s. > 

O

4. 

4. 

O .

d

cd

CUj

o

N

O

4

4. " 

U

O  

r" 

U

U

O

O , 

cd

Oin. 

4. + ° 

cd

V

z

O

00

U

U

y

3

U

U

O , 

n

Qa) 
a4

u. 

cd

O

W

U

Cn

O .

y

4, +- 

cd

cd

O

s

U

U

U

O

U +, '.. 

N

O

U

cd '

v, 

O

z

U

O

4- 

UO ° 
o

o 

o 

4° 

U.

o ' 

Gn

b4 

3 •.. 

U

1

cd ° 

U4. ° 

Uo 

U

b 

U

U

w  •°

U

U° ) 

o

cO. 

Co

U

a) -

b ~ 

u, 

do = 
Uzu

Cd

U  

CZ

UU `
JU:

sU
6, 

U

U, ¢, ' 

o

4.

Cd

O

x

3

U) 

cd

Q, ;

U 

O

O

ZU ° 

onp" 
1o

jU , 
4O

En

cut

v, > 

U

O

O04 " ' 
d ° 

ab

CvNo ° ° 

v) °)

m °) 

W

o ,

i

U

W

U

N

OO

N

U

N

O

O

y

U

O " 

U

O

O

d

N

W

U

cd

o

0

U

U  

U

U >, > — 

a

N

Q 

V }

5_,_  

C7

W
C

u

664

O

O

W

3

U

k

2

cd

cd

OU

N 

i

chi

U

d

cd

cd

d

dip

U }" 

cd

O

U

O

U

cd

O

w '

C

U

U

a) 

vi

0O '  '

o

cd

U

U " 

R , °) 

f- 

U

p °'-) 

m

W

U

U

U

s- , 

y

0

N

U

O

O

O

cd — 

Cd

a

U  .

O

bA

O

v, . 

O

U

U

bA . 

U

U

U

U

U

U

O

z '

C > 

v, 

V1

U

V1

p , 

0

O> 

N

W >, 

3

Q. 

3

U

N

U

U

Cd

U — 

O

xi

U .. . 

U

vi

d

d_

a

Q3

dcz

Q' 

Q°,

cd3

d,

d°

arsN
d 

o°'  ,

o1°

oU 

o

03

U

N-

o -

d > 

U¢ 

ci

xa
x

x

x

CAzoocn
o

3

aoi

b°
iD

v

Q. 

o . 

o

Q [

i: 

C7

E 

cli

ri

vi



C4  

N

GJ

d

67

i

M

M

i

i

i

i

i

i

i

i

i

M

M

O

M

VJ

m

y

7

7

V

7

p

y

y

p

p

p '

O

A10
10

EA

V) 

N

N

cd

A 

bA

OO

A

S] 

A

N

N

U

Ey

o

0

0

0

0

0

S

0

m

M

N •~ 

n••
1

7

70o

vi
1 

O

o0

7

7

cV <

t

o0

0 .%

i

O •^' 

cz  "'   

M
y..

i

w

u -- 

Q., 

y

m

O

7

M

O

O

vi
r- 

m

oo

In

O

7 ,

F, 

O

4y

O

N

i••

O

Q

O+ 

X

9r
oo

t 

M

o0

oo

v) 

N

r

oo

oo

7

7
t 

v 

O

V;• 

O

O

M

U

O

V

O

O •. 

b9

FH

M

6S

N

6

9

Q

Uj „

fy

O

p

42

d "

O

U

a - 

cd

O

o

0

0

0

0

0o

O

U

by

U

U

Q

A

U

N

Cl

0

o

S

S

o

0

0

0

0

0

m

aa

v

v

t 

v

o

oo

v

v

c14

v

U

O .. 

O

o

ry

r

N

v

U , 

rw` 

U ' 

bU '° 

Ocn

O

M

M

O

O

o0

0o

m

on

N

00

0o

N

v

v

V

69

6A

69 '-' 

M

N

o0Ef3  '•+

4  

i-

I ,

y      

U ? 

ti

wwwwwwww
U }' 

3() 

N

4'. 

cn

CIA

O

U

rn

va '. 

cnN
U

U

u

aoi

aoi

aoi

aoi

aoi

aoi

a°

i

aCi

4r "

O

V ' +' - 

N >

1

cl

A

L: 

E '

C

ej

p

U

a3

3' 

inia3 >,' 

w) 

O ` 

M

ir"

M

44

cdA

c) 

u) 

u) 

cn

is

ro

m

cn m   

cV) 

cd

cd  

U

0    

A „ 

U

0

U

N

WN

N

rq

N

N

N

N

O

O

Z

V

Q

S

S

S

S

S

O

O

S

Zo

6 .

o

c

a

c " 

30

v, 

U

V

U

c}

C, 

O

O

U

y.  

o  

r  

r

r

r

r

r  

y

W .

p . + 

N

A 

W •." 

O '

C

A

U

v

v

v

v

v

v

U "

C ' 

cinV

Q

v

o0

00

00

00

00

00

00

0? 

O $. 

U

c .• 

Q :"

r ^; .+ • 

a

4

00000000 > 

p

04

4, 

p 

6

Cr" 

cz

cl

o

a

t. 

CLQ

abAA '. 

Y

e

s

U  

n ' 

3- 

Q

A ' 

a

fl

aooi

o

Ncdv 
ani

Q '

Q

CVavi .• 

e

oo

j

4 

3 '

Ov' 

4Q 

O• 

arUy

rE
y

O

ct

U\ 

W

U

c'-

nO
bA

AU

CG

C7

3

W

U

cn

R

0

P

3

U

O

C

cC

V1 ( 

bQ

V] 

U ( 

V]    

F-'  

U

N

N

0A

d

x [-• 

w

n. 

3

U

h



U



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- U

A RESOLUTION DONATING SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY TO

WAYNE COMMUNITY COLLEGE BASIC LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING

WHEREAS, the City Manager from time to time identifies various items or groups of items to be no longer
necessary or functional to the City' s needs; and

WHEREAS, sound property management principles and financial consideration indicate the interests of the City
would be served by disposing of the property; and

WHEREAS, G. S. § 160A -266( c) provides for the disposal or exchange of personal property for any one item or

group of items by the City upon the adoption of procedures for disposal by the Council; and

WHEREAS, G. S. § 160A- 280 establishes that ( a) A City may donate to another governmental unit of the United

States, any personal property, including supplies, materials, and equipment, that the governing board of the City shall post
a public notice at least 5 days prior to the adoption of a resolution approving the donation. The resolution shall be adopted

prior to making any donation of surplus, obsolete, or unused property; and

WHEREAS, the Basic Law Enforcement Program of Wayne Community College can utilize and has requested

twenty- five ( 25) right and five ( 5) left- handed holsters to train Basic Law Enforcement recruits. These holsters being
obsolete as new flashlight capable holsters are being utilized by the City Police Department. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

Section 1. Pursuant to the authority granted by § 160A- 265, and § 160A -266( c), the City of Goldsboro Council

does hereby declare the Police holsters as surplus. 

Section 2. Pursuant to the authority granted by § 160A- 280, the City hereby donates the Police holsters to

the Wayne Community College Basic Law Enforcement Training. 

Section 3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

Adopted this the 6' day of May, 2024. 

Charles GaylorW' 

Mayor

y. 

ATTEST: 

sat'4 

Laura Getz

City Clerk



V



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 —J I

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER AND FINANCE DIRECTOR

TO EXECUTIVE A CONTRACT WITH DAVENPORT AND COMPANY LLC

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro desires to manage its finances and debt profile in a fiscally
responsible manner, and understands that it is in the City' s best interest to engage a professional finance

advisory service to help with the management of this function; and

WHEREAS, Davenport and Company LLC has had an existing agreement for Financial Advisory
Services with the City of Goldsboro since September 21, 2009; and

WHEREAS, Davenport is currently providing an Agreement Addendum for proposed updates to
our existing Financial Advisory Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the proposed updates will be effective July 1, 2024. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Interim City Manager and Finance Director be and are hereby authorized to execute a
contract with Davenport and Company LLC. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 6' day of May, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

zt'l - 5/  
Charles Gaylor, 

Mayor



























W



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- b 0

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER AND STAFF TO

EXECUTE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY RELATED TO THE MEMO OF UNDERSTANDING

WITH THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR THE USE OF THE CITY FUEL SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro maintains a fuel system at its Public Works facility on
Clingman Street to provide fuel for the city owned equipment and vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the City relies on the Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro ( HACG) to

provide needed housing to the citizens and residents of the City; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City and the HACG to enter into a memorandum of
understanding on the use of the City' s fuel system with the upcoming upgrade and implementation of new
cloud based fuel management, tracking and billing system; and

WHEREAS, the Council should designate the officials responsible for executing the

memorandum of understanding between the City and the HACG. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro designates Matthew S. Livingston, Interim City Manager, and other staff as
needed to execute the memorandum of understanding with the Housing Authority of the City of
Goldsboro. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
6th

day of May, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles G6yfor, 

Mayor

G LDS6
9

a" 
w









X













Y



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 61
RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO PURCHASE A F-150 EXTENDED CAB PICKUP TRUCK

WHEREAS, the Public Works Solid Waste Division has a 1997 Ford F- 150 Extended Bed pickup; and

WHEREAS, the pickup is used every day, but primarily to deliver and retrieve residential refuse and
recycle roll out containers; and

WHEREAS, the pickup has been included in the last several budgets to be replaced, but continues to
be cut during the budget process; and

WHEREAS, the pickup continues to become more and more unreliable; and

WHEREAS, Performance Automotive has a 2024 Ford F- 150 Extended Bed pickup readily available
for purchase through state contract for $40, 000; and

WHEREAS, residual funds are available in the current FY24 Public Works Solid Waste budget to

cover the total cost. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the purchase of the Ford F- 150 Extended Bed pickup from
Performance Automotive, through state contract, for $40, 000; and

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
61

day of May, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Charles Gaylor, I

G Lp Mayor

J

Z
n0 ", 

1aUt. 



Z



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 6 - 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO INSTALL A PERIMETER FENCE AROUND

THE CITY' S SOLID WASTE TRANSFER STATION

WHEREAS, the Public Works Solid Waste Division operates and maintains the City' s solid waste transfer
station located at 903 Brick Street; and

WHEREAS, the transfer station is used daily to receive, compact, and transport all Municipal Solid Waste
collected within the City; and

WHEREAS, the compound is not secure and has been experiencing a steady increase in the number of
unauthorized people trespassing; and

WHEREAS, a pressure washer and Case Excavator have recently been vandalized by trespassers; and

WHEREAS, there are liability and safety concerns associated with trespassers gaining unthwarted access to
the compound, and

WHEREAS, estimated value of the machinery and equipment kept onsite is over $ 2M; and

WHEREAS, the most practical means of securing the compound would be to install a perimeter fence; and

WHEREAS, the City has requested and received multiple quotes to install over 3, 000 linear feet of fence
with vehicle access gates, including an automated gate at the main entrance. Based on the quotes received, the
estimated cost is $ 55, 500; and

WHEREAS, residual funds are available in the current FY24 Public Works Solid Waste budget to cover the

total cost of installing the perimeter fence. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the installation of a new perimeter fence, with an automated main
entrance gate, for $ 55, 500 using FY24 residual Public Works Solid Waste funds; and

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 6' day of May, 2024. 

G L Charles Gaylor Ix— 

Mayor

Attested by: 

rtj Ak
Laura Getz

City Clerk



AA



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 63

RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE TRAVEL

AND TOURISM DEPARTMENT

WHEREAS, the Chamber of Commerce needs additional space. The Travel and

Tourism Department was asked to move out of their current space. The Tourism Department

was offered a smaller space at the Chamber of Commerce, but the new space isn' t large enough

to accommodate offices and the visitor center; and

WHEREAS, the Tourism Department Director and Interim City Manager have looked at
multiple locations and feels this property at 119 North Center Street will be a good location for
the Tourism Office and Visitor Center; and

WHEREAS, the current lease for 119 North Center Street would be for 3 years

beginning July 1, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the space is 2, 151 square feet. Travel and Tourism would be responsible

for the monthly rent of $2, 000 and 55% of the electric bill beginning July 1, 2024 -June 30, 
2025, $ 2, 100 per month plus 55% of the electric bill beginning July 1, 2025 -June 30, 2026, and

2, 200 per month plus 55% of the electric bill July 1, 2026 -June 30, 2027. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that the

Interim City Manager is authorized to execute a lease agreement with Wooten Development for
office space and visitor center for the Travel and Tourism Department. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this

6t' 

day of May, 2024. 

Charles Gay or, 
Mayor

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk















BB



RESOLUTION NO. 2024— 6 / 

RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2023- 3, A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH

BALANCED CHOICE VENDING LLC. 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns the Goldsboro Golf Course and Event Center; 
and

WHEREAS, Balance Choice Cafe, LLC has need of the golf course kitchen/ bar space to
prepare, vend, and sale meals, and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Goldsboro have a need for meals to be served at the Goldsboro

Golf Course and Event Center, and

WHEREAS, the city is capable of accommodating the request for space without harm to
the City, and staff is requesting that council approve the lease agreement with Balance Choice
Cafe, LLC, and

WHEREAS, in consideration of the use of said space, Balance Choice Cafe, LLC will pay
a rate of $600. 00 per month plus 5% net of all monthly sales. The term of the lease will be for
three ( 3) years with the option to renew for an additional term of three ( 3) years at the end of the

initial term; and

WHEREAS, the ABC Commission has requested that the name of the company be revised
on the resolution and lease to reflect the correct name of the company, Balance Choice Cafe, LLC. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the revised lease agreement signature
page with Balance Choice Cafe, LLC. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after May 6, 2024. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz

City Clerk

Z' 
harles Gaylor, 

Mayor











































CC

Moved to Individual Action 

Failed







DD

Removed to 
May 20th Council Meeting



ORDINANCE NO. 2024 - ____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 72: STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

WHEREAS, after a review of downtown parking concerns, the Downtown Development Department 
presented options to Council for parking management; and  

 
WHEREAS, Council approved the implementation of timed parking at their meeting on May 1, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ch 72 currently defines no parking, 15 minute, 1-hour, and 2-hour parking limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a review of Chapter 72, City staff recommend adding section 72.29 as noted below.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, that section 72.29 of 

the Code of Ordinances, City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, is hereby added as follows:  
 

Chapter 72 

§ 72.29 THREE-HOUR PARKING LIMIT. 
 
   When signs are placed, erected, or installed in each block giving notice thereof, no person shall park a 
vehicle for longer than three hours at any time between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. unless other 
hours are designated, of any days except Sundays and public holidays, upon any of the streets described in 
Chapter 75, and the changing of the position of a vehicle from one point to another point within the same 
parking space shall be deemed one continuous parking period. Each three-hour period, or a portion 
thereof, in which the vehicle remains in the limited parking space after the three hours permitted has 
expired constitutes a separate violation of this section, and each such violation shall constitute and be 
punishable as a separate offense. 
 
 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 6th day of May, 2024. 
 
 
 

       ______________________ 
       Charles Gaylor, IV  

Mayor  
Attested by:   
 
 
___________________ 
Laura Getz 
City Clerk 



EE



OzWUzaz0O

c

Y

N

m

cLv

U

a

c

Q

CU

L

aC

3c

N_ a

t

c

NO

m

a

m

C

m

of

E

U

L

0

a

I 

Wc

Y

u

OA

a

m

c

7

a

L

c

c

m

c

Q' 

O

L

D

O

UO

OY

OU

U

N

Ln O

Q

Q`

o

3

o

c

Y

a

Q

v

O

L

O

O

cC

O

a

i

D

O

v

v_ 

in

00

O

Y> 

C

20

N

N

H

p

L

N

m

t

0N

c

Y

NL

QO

Y

f

c

N

N

C) 

O

Y

N

ac

Lm

t

O

T

L0

L

Q) 

OL

c0

0

boC

a

Q

Y

Q

Q

m7

p

C3m

aL

a

c

7

O0

L

O

O

L

7

Q) 

L00

EO

O

c

to

p

a

c

O

V

L

m

Y

O

N

m-

0U

mY

m

c

C

a

O

O

O

L

a

c

3

o

w" 

j

c

c

Q) 

cLo

v' 

c

O_ O

l7

i

o

M

0

a

aE

3

fl

i

c

o

O

o

c^ 

a

c

Y

a

aai
L

ti4
a° 
L

m

z

4.

1

a

7

n

m

1` 

U

3

bo

L•+ 

l% 

O

c

C

V

d

L

a 

p' 

QO

in
O +, 

O

a

CU

mQ

poC) 

C

n

o

aa

aE

0

4- 

c

3

U

LO

a

a

ca

Wv

a

a

m

CU

c

L

a

f6

y

L

u

U
m

VI

tY

c

Y

c

mm

L_ 

v, 

L

a

c

oc

Q

Qui

v

a

O

U> 

a— 

O

N

O

O

N

m

a

W

O

m> 

cL
t

a

c

O

Y

m_ 

n

Y

t

W

c

a

Y3

Y

a

N

Q

a

c

p

WU

NL

CL

m

d

N

Q

o

a

bo

Y

O

QQ

O

Y

0

bo

c

v

L0

a

m

N

a

bp

4- 

U

c

L

O

Q

it

a

N

L

N

M

L

a

c

a

NA

0

Lm

m

m

to

c

O

vi

U 

J

m

Q

m

a

O

a

a

ca

0)

Q

O

a

W

3

mC- 

to

o

E

c3

0

a

t

a- v

m

x- 

a

m

c

a0

O

c

a

Y

ami

is

c

z

mC

O

Cm C

aL

O

Y> c

O

Lm

oa

a

cm

z

abo

f0

c

m3

0

a

0

Q

z

i

c

42

E

v

o

a0, 

aci

U

a

0

ON

to

a 

0

c 
Z

o

Q" 

Q

t

U

c

Q

0

z

0

cv1

U

0 

a

O

MO

O

i

m

c

O

O

H

O

x

U

o

a

YD: 

U

L1

N

V

u•
i

pC

bo0

aE

U

N

c

a

m

W

U

H

3

a

c

YU

a

c

O

a

n

a" 

Y

L

0

m

3

Y

Y

0

b0° 

ON

a

a

m

o

0

Q

c

u

t

0O

Z

y

Q

a

m

a

c

o0

a

0N

c

O

c

O

o

n

o

m

a 

m

3

L, 

W

0

o

E

o

a

o

Y

m

inc

en

to

CL

toc

cU

m

p

4 - 

7

aa

to

x

Q) 

C
C

O
oQ

c

O

60

H-

0—" 

y

O

LO

N

c

a

Z

p

m

V

O

a

3

W

Q" 

E

W

a

2

W

O

a

W

3

v

Q

0

a

E

ix

6

W

a

c

W

4- 

W

3

a

lA

0

4- 

m0

N

w. 

OU

W

v> 

yL_ 

p

x

x

L

x

3

O

o

M

3

cOo

3

E

v

MO

3

o

3

z

m 

a

v

v

v

o

0

a

O

O

u

N

V) 

U

c

Lna
O

Q

N

N

N

m

E

Ln

m

m

m

T

NYacLv

U

Q

CU



FF



RESOLUTION NO. 2024- 6

RESOLUTION CREATING A SPECIAL EVENT AND STREET CLOSING POLICY

WHEREAS, the Policy Regarding the use ofCity -Owned Property for Special Events was
discussed with Council at the May 1, 2023, meeting and was adopted by resolution. The policy
was revised again on March 4, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Policy Regarding the use of City -Owned Property for Special Events has
been revised to clarify the process to hold a Special Event and Street Closing; and

WHEREAS, some of the changes listed in the revised policy are listed below: 

The City Manager will approve all street closing applications based on the criteria
listed in this policy which do not require the closing of Center Street, or a NC DOT
maintained street. 

Recurring events granted approval for five ( 5) consecutive years may not require
City Council approval so long as the event remains substantially the same. All events
require submission of an application and City Manager approval before a Special
Event permit is issued. 

Application fees may be waived by the City Manager for events sponsored by the
City of Goldsboro. All requests for sponsorship must be approved by the City
Council. 

Application fees for services are listed in the policy but are no more than $ 400. 00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that the Special Event and Street Closing Policy is hereby approved
as presented. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this

6t' 

day of May, 2024

Attested by: 

j

Laura Getz

City Clerk

D"`•.' 

Mayord



 
 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 1 of 12  

Introduction 

The City of Goldsboro is a vibrant community with a variety of municipal resources which lend themselves to 

use for special events. Special events require the coordination of a variety of city and event organizers’ resources 

to come together successfully. Whether held downtown, in one of our many attractive public parks or elsewhere 

in the city, they have very specific impacts which are best considered and weighed prior to the event itself. 

The City Manager will approve all street closing applications based on the criteria listed in this policy which do 

not require the closing of more than two blocks of Center Street, or a NC DOT maintained street.  

All events require submission of an application and City Manager approval before a Special Event permit is 

issued. Recurring events granted approval for 5 consecutive years may not require city council approval so long 

as the event remains substantially the same.  

The use of City-owned Parks and Recreation property, Goldsboro Event Center, Goldsboro Municipal Golf 

Course and the Paramount Theatre is not regulated by this Policy. 

Application fees may be waived by the City Manager for events sponsored by the City of Goldsboro. All 

requests for sponsorship must be approved by the City Council.   

The following policy has been established to facilitate this planning process with the city. If you are planning a 

special event in the City of Goldsboro, it is essential that you review the policy well ahead of your planned event 

date to determine what you’ll need to have in place for a successful event! 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 2 of 12  

1. Definitions 

Special Event - A special event is defined as an organized activity that has a stationary footprint 

requiring the closure of streets, public spaces, or plazas. These events often contain amplified noise, food, 

beverage, merchandise, and other entertainment. Examples would include festivals, markets, memorials, 

demonstrations, marches, and ceremonies. All special events require a Special Event Permit issued by the City 

of Goldsboro. 

 
Park and/or Street Festival - An organized neighborhood or public gathering on a public right-of-way (street, 

sidewalk, parking lot or alley) or public park on a specified date at a specific time and confined to a designated 

area that may or may not require an admission fee to enter and participate. 

 
Procession/Parade - A public or private march, run, walk, cavalcade, autocade, parade of any kind, other 

gathering of persons that occurs upon public right-of-way, park or both in an area used for vehicular traffic.  

 
Organized Competitive Event - Any planned race, walk, derby, or event that involves a contest of skill and/or 

strength and takes place upon public right-of-way or park. 

 

2. Application of this Policy 

This policy shall apply to all events taking place in the public right-of-way or for which the event organizer is 

requesting use of city resources, services, or personnel. Examples of special events include, but are not limited to, 

festivals, concerts, parades, street markets, runs and rallies. 

 

Note: The following activities are exempt from this special event policy: 

a. Funeral processions, 

b. Group demonstrations or lawful picketing on sidewalks, subject to the Goldsboro Code of Ordinances, and 

c. Sidewalk dining, subject to the Goldsboro Code of Ordinances. 

 

 

 

 

 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 3 of 12  

3. Special Event Application: Timelines 

The City Manager or their designee reviews all event applications within the city. Event organizers are strongly 

encouraged to advertise their event after final approval. The City of Goldsboro is not responsible for fees, costs or 

expenses incurred by the Event Organizer if the event was advertised and not approved. The timeline below outlines 

minimum requirements for Special Event Permit Applications. 

 

Special Event Application Submission & Approval Timeline 

Minimum 60 Days Prior to Special Event Date – Application Submission 

 Submission of Special Event Application Package with Street Closure Request(s) 

 Special Event Site Plan 

  
Minimum 45 Days Prior to Special Event Date  

 Final Site Plan, Event Timeline & On-Site Contacts 

 Proof of Insurance 

 Applicable Permits 

 Formal Event Notice 

  

   Minimum 30 Days Prior (If necessary) 
 City Council Review & Approval  

 

4. SUBMIT SPECIAL EVENT/STREET CLOSING APPLICATIONS TO: 

Goldsboro Police Department  
Community Police Services        
204 S. Center Street 
Goldsboro, NC 27530    
spowers@goldsboronc.gov 
 

 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 4 of 12  

5. TIER EXPLANATION 

The City of Goldsboro differentiates events by tiers. Each tier differs based on projected attendance, 
City services and street closures. Special Events and Street Closures will be determined based on the tiers 
below. The application fee is listed below and is a non-refundable fee and is to be in the form of a check made 
payable to the City of Goldsboro.  The event organizer must review the table below to understand which 
tier their event will be classified as: 

Tiers  Details  Application 

Fee 

Deadlines 

TIER 1 

• Fewer than 200 people  
• Minimal City services 
• No closure of public right-of-way/streets 
• Alcohol can be present with proper approval & permits. 
• Approved by the City Manager if the closure involves up to two 

blocks of Center Street or any street other than NC DOT streets 

$100.00 

 
 
 

 

Must be submitted for 

approval at least 30 

days prior to the event. 

 

TIER 2 

• 201-500 people  
• Multiple City services 
• Possible closure of City parking lots, public right-of-way, 

and/or streets (Not to include Center Street) 
• Alcohol can be present with proper approval & permits. 
• Approved by the City Manager if the closure involves up to two 

blocks of Center Street or any street other than NC DOT streets 

$200.00 Must be submitted for 

approval at least 60 

days prior to the event. 

TIER 3 

 

• 501-1000 people 
• Multiple City services 
• Possible closure of City parking lots, public right-of-way, 

and/or streets (Not to include Center Street) 
• Alcohol can be present with proper approval & permits. 
• Approved by the City Manager if the closure involves up to two 

blocks of Center Street or any street other than NC DOT streets 

$300.00 Must be submitted for 

approval at least 60 

days prior to the event. 

TIER 4 

• 1001 people or more  
• Multiple City services 
• Closure of more than two blocks of Center Street 
• Alcohol can be present with proper approval & permits. 
• Approved by City Council unless the event is a historical event. 

$400.00 Must be submitted for 

approval at least 60 

days prior to the event. 

 

 

 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 5 of 12  

6. Special Event Application: Component Parts 

Event Application Cover Page: 

a. Event Organizer & Contact Information 

b. Name of Event 

c. Date(s) of Event 

d. Past Attendance Trends & Predicted Attendance for Upcoming Event 

e. Past Vendor Participation Trends & Predicted Vendor Participation for Upcoming Event 

 
Event Description, Statement of Public Benefit and Public Services Required: A basic overview of the event 

and its impact on the community and city services. Provide an overview of the event and how it will benefit the 

community. In addition, include information about what you, as the event coordinator, will need in terms of city 

services. Examples might include additional trash pick-up/Public Works Department support, Police support, 

Parks and Recreation staff support, and Fire Department support. 

 

Minimal City Services is defined as services that require no more than one hour of City department staff time.  

Multiple City Services is defined as services that require more than one City department service and more than one hour 

of City department staff time. 

 
Event Marketing Strategy & Budget: A snapshot of the people and places you are targeting in your effort to 

“get the word out” about your event and the budget you are employing to reach your target market. Reviewing 

this snapshot is an important component of understanding the public benefit. 

Event Site Plan: A visual representation of all the operational elements of your proposed event. To properly 

assess the event, the site map should be submitted along with the Special Event Application and include the 

following elements: 

A  Directions indicated by directional arrow symbol. 

B  The overall event area including: any requested street closures and/or the location and number of any parking 
closures. 

C 
 The location and dimensions of all physical equipment being placed, including, but not limited to, any stage(s), 
vendors, booths, sponsors, tents, signs, barricades, portable toilets, vehicles, shelters, etc. 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 6 of 12  

D  Location of temporary alcohol sales where both sales and consumption occur. 

E  Indicate 14’ wide fire lane clearances in all areas and the location of all fire hydrants. 

F  Include electrical plans for vendors and stages, specifying how much each site requires, in terms of amps & 
volts. 

G  Any other details you think are helpful in the physical description of your event. 

 

Event Impact Notification: All event organizers must notify impacted residents, businesses, places of worship 

and schools that are affected by street and sidewalk impacts related to the event by formal notice. The formal 

“Event Impact Notice” must be submitted with the special event application and will be reviewed by the City 

Manager or their designee. The formal Event Impact Notification must: 

• Be completed by all event applicants. 

• Be submitted to the City Manager or their designee prior to distribution to impacted areas. 

• Be distributed to impacted areas, at least 20 days prior to the event by either email, hand or mail delivery. 

• Include the name of the event, event date(s), time(s) of event and overall impacts (including set-up and tear 

down), specific location of impacts, type of activity and telephone number where the public can contact 

your organization about the event. 

Electrical Requirements (when applicable): If your event includes food or retail vendors and any of those 
vendors or you as the event coordinator require electric, you must note the request on the application. 

General Liability Insurance:  General Liability Insurance coverage of at least $1 million that holds the City and 
its taxpayers harmless from claims arising out of operation of the event is required. This proof of insurance or 
applicable rider MUST be submitted prior to receiving the Special Event Permit. Contact your insurance provider 
for assistance. If the event requires additional insurance, the Finance Director will notify the Police Department 
and City Manager’s Office. Carnival applicants must provide proof of liability insurance of at least $5 million. 
The city must be listed as an additional insured on the Certificate of Insurance and shall be in place at the time 
such structure is to be occupied or such place of assembly is established for use by the public. Additional 
requirements will be conveyed to the event organizers. 
 
Indemnity Statement: An indemnity statement, approved by the City Attorney, whereby the event operator 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the city and its officers, agents and employees from any claim arising 

from the operation of the special event. 

 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 7 of 12  

Police Support: The Goldsboro Police Department shall determine the number of police officers needed to 

appropriately manage security, as well as the time when such services shall commence.  The applicant may be 

responsible for hiring and paying off-duty law enforcement officers or reimbursing the City of Goldsboro for the 

costs of providing on-duty law enforcement officers, to appropriately manage the event. Please contact the City 

of Goldsboro’s Police Department Off-Duty Coordinator at 919-580-4223. 

Alcoholic Beverages: 

(If consumption of alcohol is planned on property for event, the following requirements MUST be met.)  

1. Goldsboro has a Social District in the area of the HUB complex downtown. A social district is a defined 
area in which a person may consume alcoholic beverages from an official container sold by an approved 
ABC permittee located within defined social district boundaries and defined days and hours of 
operation. Having a Social District affects the choices available to patrons wishing to rent the HUB. 

2. All necessary ABC permits must be issued by the State and copies provided with this application. 
Follow steps outlined at www.abc.nc.gov/permits. 

3. Signs shall be posted and visible at all exit points at the special event stating that it is unlawful to 
remove alcoholic beverages from opened or sealed containers from the premises. 

4. Areas where alcohol will be consumed, served, or sold must clearly be defined and delineated on the 
premises by barricades, caution tape or other acceptable means. 

5. Off-duty law enforcement officers are required to be on-site if alcohol is present at the event. The 
number of officers required will be determined by the Goldsboro Police Department. 
 

If the event sells or distributes alcohol, you are required to submit an ABC permit with your application 
before the Special Event permit is issued. 
 

Special Event Applicant Priority Ranking: The City Manager’s Office or his designee will use the following 

priority list if there are conflicting requests for a particular time and date. 

Priority will be given in the following order: 

a. Events that have established historic precedence and are in good standing. 

b. Events organized by the City of Goldsboro. 

c. Events organized by Wayne County Public County Schools. 

d. Events organized by Wayne County Government. 

e. Events organized by City of Goldsboro based non-profit organizations with proceeds providing assistance to 

the organizer or another Goldsboro based non-profit organization (requires proof of 501c(3) status). 

f. Events organized by private businesses, non-profit organizations; without or pending 501c(3) status, not 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 8 of 12  

based in Goldsboro, and/or individuals for the purpose of profit, personal gain, and/or proceeds that will 

be used to benefit other than those Goldsboro based non-profit organizations. 

Criteria Considered for All Street Closures & Other Event Impacts: The following factors are carefully 

considered prior to recommending approval of proposed events, particularly those which require street closure 

(whether lane closures, local streets, or major/secondary streets). Organizers wishing to close any portion of a 

street will need to justify that need with a compelling case composed of information in the following categories. 

Street Closures will also be determined based on the criteria below. 

a. Total number of event attendees, both historical trends and predicted increases. 

i. These numbers will be considered both in terms of total attendance and attendance over time, i.e. a 

smaller total may still warrant closure if concentrated over a short period of time. 

ii. Unless an event attracts more than 5,000 visitors per day it would typically not warrant the closure of 

a majority of Center Street. 

iii. Smaller events with fewer than 5,000 visitors per day may warrant the closure of up to two (2) blocks 

of Center Street. 

b. Total number of event vendors, both historical trends and predicted increases. 

i. Unless an event hosts more than 125 vendors it would typically not warrant the closure of a 

majority of Center Street. 

ii. Smaller events with fewer than 125 vendors may warrant the closure of one or more blocks of 

Center Street. 

c. Event Marketing Strategy & Budget 

d. Verification that the event applicant or sponsor has committed to completing the “Event Impact 

Notification.” 

e. Impact of the proposed event on residents, occupants or businesspersons of the block. 

f. Impact of the proposed event on the accessibility of emergency vehicles in the closure areas. 

g. Impact of the proposed event on vehicular traffic such as circulation, traffic movement and availability 

of alternate routes for traffic. 

h. Potential interference with commercial and business activities in the immediate vicinity. 

i. Conditions existing in the surrounding area that, when occurring in conjunction with a street closure, 



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 9 of 12  

might create a hardship or an unnecessary inconvenience to the public or people residing in the area. 

j. Relationship regarding timing of proposed closure to other approved or proposed closures. 

Portable Toilets: Portable toilet requirements are listed in the Street Closing application.  

Tents: Tent and canopy requirements are listed in the applicable rental application or Special Event and Street 
Closing Application.  

 
Trash receptacles/Waste: Solid waste plans must be provided and approved by the Public Works Department.  
Solid waste plans shall include provisions for both trash and recyclables. An additional fee in the amount 
determined by the City Manager’s Office may be charged if the property is not cleaned to its prior condition. 

 
Other Rules and Regulations: 

The special event must be allowed by the underlying zoning district. 

The hours for the special event shall be no earlier than 9:00 a.m. and end no later than 10:00 p.m. unless 
approved by Goldsboro City Council. 

No political or campaign promotions are permitted during the special event. 

No firearms are permitted on City-owned property. 

a. Excessive noise in violation of the City’s Noise Ordinance will not be permitted and penalties may be invoked 
as follows: 

    1st Offense:     Warning (Verbal or Written) and/or fine. 

  2nd Offense:    Termination of Special Event and/or fine.  

During setup and the event, the Event Organizer or designee must be always on-site. The Event Planner should 
be prepared to handle questions and problems regarding the event, such as resolving disputes among vendors, 
rain delays and coordination of City services. 

The Event Organizer shall ensure that public property is protected from damage other than normal wear and 
tear, including, but not limited to, vandalism; damage to grass, shrubbery, or trees; damage to monuments, 
benches, or other amenities; damage to utilities and damage to sidewalks, asphalt in streets and parking lots. 

The Event Organizer is responsible for removal of any flyers, banners, posters and/or temporary signs placed in 
public areas to publicize the event immediately following the end of the event. 

All animals must be leashed as outlined in COG Code of Ordinances 91.15; 91.18. 

Vehicles will only be allowed in designated parking areas.   



 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

  

Page 10 of 12  

Applicant understands that it will not be the responsibility of the Police Department to relocate vehicles parked 
along any portions of the streets to be closed prior to the event. 

 

Special Event Application: Grounds for Denial 

The City Manager’s Office may deny a permit application on one or more of the following grounds: 

 
• The event applicant does not generate a compelling case for the event’s public benefit. 

• Failure to submit an application within the time periods outlined herein. 

• Failure to submit a complete application. A complete application is one which addresses all “required” 

elements of the application. 

• The City Manager or his designee has already received a completed application for the same date and/or 

space. 

• The event would conflict with previously planned programs organized and conducted by the city or non-

governmental agencies scheduled for the same time and/or place. 

• An event requiring street closures, occurring within ten (10) days of an existing event, which also requires 

street closures. 

• The applicant does not comply with all applicable city ordinances, traffic rules, park rules and regulations, 

state health laws, fire codes and/or ABC licensing regulations. 

• The use or event proposed by the applicant would present an unreasonable danger to the health or safety of 

the public. 

• The applicant cannot comply with applicable local, state, and federal license requirements for all or part of 

the planned event. 

• The use of the event is prohibited by law. 

• The application contains material misrepresentation or fraudulent information. 



 
 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

 

Page 11 of 12 
 

Appendix 

Example “Notice of Event Impact”  

Example General Liability Policy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 Subject: Special Event and Street Closing Policy Department: City Manager’s Office 

Policy #: Adopted: 
05/06/2024 

Effective: 
05/06/2024 

Supersedes: 
RES 2024-34 

Resolution #:  
 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-003 

 

Page 12 of 12 
 

 

NOTICE OF EVENT IMPACT 

{EVENT NAME} 

The organizers of {EVENT NAME} have received approval from the City of Goldsboro to host {EVENT 

NAME} on {EVENT DATE(S)} from {EVENT START TIME} to {EVENT CONCLUSION TIME}. 

{EVENT NAME} includes the closure of {STREET NAME} between {CROSS STREET NAME} and 

{CROSS STREET NAME}. To accommodate event set‐up and tear down this street will close between {TIME 

& DATE} to {TIME & DATE}. 

The closure will be for the exclusion of vehicles only. A 14’emergency lane shall be provided on all streets 

within the said closure at all times. 

Should you have questions or concerns regarding {EVENT NAME} and the related event impacts, you can 

speak with our team by calling: __________________________. 

 

{AUTHORIZED EVENT COODINATOR NAME AND PHONE NUMBER} 

 
 



GG



















DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACTPRODUCER NAME:
FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:
PRODUCER
CUSTOMER ID #:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURED INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL SUBRINSR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERLTR (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)INSR WVD

GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $
PRO- $POLICY LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMITAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $
(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO
BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

ALL OWNED AUTOS
BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

SCHEDULED AUTOS
PROPERTY DAMAGE

$
(PER ACCIDENT)HIRED AUTOS

$NON-OWNED AUTOS

$

UMBRELLA LIAB EACH OCCURRENCE $OCCUR

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

$DEDUCTIBLE

$RETENTION $
WC STATU- OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION

TORY LIMITS ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

N / AOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2009 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2009/09)

Amy L. Doherty

OP ID: JE01

01/23/2024

Aon Assn Services, a Division
of Affinity Ins. Services, Inc
2001 K Street NW, Suite 625
Washington, DC 20006
Amy L. Doherty FPMS006

Five P Minus Society
P. O. Box  268
Lakewood, CA 90714

Great American Insurance Co.

1,000,000

A X X SPP9209721 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 300,000

X 10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

X

1,000,000
A SPP9209721 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

X
X

5k for 5p-Society 5/18/2024                                                 
City of Goldsboro is named the additional insured per terms of the          
agreement.                                                                  

CITGOLD

City of Goldsboro
204 S Center Street
Goldsboro, NC 27530

A0816665
Amy Doherty Stamp



HH







*Due to NCDOT not being notified 60 days in advance, parade route will 
turn around at Center Street and Mulberry Street, not Center Street and 
Ash Street.  Thus, Ash Street will remain open to motorist. - GPD















I I























ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

4/25/2024

(919) 778-9400 (919) 751-2142

23280

Crime Stoppers of Wayne County
Inc. DBA Goldsboro-Wayne Crime
P.O. Box 1116
Goldsboro, NC

A 1,000,000

X ENP 0122091 3/1/2024 3/1/2025 100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

Road Run - Saturday, June 1, 2024.  City of Goldsboro is additional insured.

City of Goldsboro
Po Drawer A
Goldsboro, NC 27533

CRIMSTO-01 LROGERS

Crawford-Henderson, Inc.
PO Box 10885
Goldsboro, NC 27532 contact@crawhen.com

Cincinnati Indemnity Co.

X
X

X


	Agenda 5-6-24
	Item A1 - Minutes 4-15-24
	Item A2 - 4-15-24 Exhibits
	Item C - Tourette Month Proclamation 2024
	Item D - Milas Kelly Memorial Proclamation 5-6- 2024
	Item E - DGAF Proclamation 2024
	Item F - Military Appreciation Month 24
	Item G - Peace Officers Proclamation 2024
	Item H - Mental Heath Month 2024
	Item I - Ch 53 Public Hearing
	Item I - ch 53 memo
	Item I2 - Ch 53.17 ORD

	Item J1 - AAP Memo
	Item J2 - 5-6-2024 FY24-25 AAP Final Plan for Approval Presentation
	2024-2025�Annual Action Plan�May 6, 2024
	The Annual Action Plan � “AAP”
	FY24-25 HUD ALLOCATIONS
	     FY24-25� NEW PROPOSED ACTIVITIES
	Slide Number 5

	Item K -  OLDCC
	Item L - Agenda 2024-05-06 Concur 811 N Virginia St (CTA Inc)_0
	Agenda Memo 2024-05-06 Concur 811 N Virginia Sale (CTA)_0
	RESOL Concurrence Sale 811 N Virginia 05-06-24_0
	Executed Resolution 811 N Virginia
	Appraisal Card 811 N Virginia 04-27-24

	Item M - Agenda 2024-05-06 Concur 1007 N John St (CTA)_0
	Agenda Memo 2024-05-06 Concur 1007 N John St Sale (CTA)_0
	RESOL Concurrence Sale 1007 N John St (CTA) 05-06-24_0
	Executed Resolution 1007 N John
	Appraisal Card 1007 N John St 04-27-24

	Item N - Agenda 2024-05-06 Concur 1310 N Carolina (CTA)_0
	Agenda Memo 2024-05-06 Concur 1310 N Carolina Sale (CTA)_0
	RESOL Concurrence Sale 1310 N Carolina (CTA) 05-06-24_0
	Executed Resolution 1310 N Carolina Street
	Appraisal Card 1310 N Carolina 04-27-24

	Item O - Agenda 2024-05-06 Upset Bid 114 S Slocumb (TWB Property)_0
	Agenda Memo 2024-05-06 Upset Bid Resolution 114 S Slocumb (TWB Property)_0
	Resolution Upset Bid 114 S Slocumb St (TWB Property)_0
	Appraisal Card 114 S Slocumb 04-27-24
	Offer 2024-03-27_TWB Property Service Inc_$5000_Redacted

	Item P - Agenda 2024-04-27 F3110 Fire SRF Amend_0
	Agenda Memo F3110 Fire Other Restricted Funds 05-06-24_0
	ORDINANCE F3110 Fire Other Restricted Funds 05-06-24_1
	Goldsboro Fire Department

	Item Q - Agenda 2024-05-06 P3104 Police SRF Amend_0
	Agenda Memo Police Other Restricted P3104 2024-05-06_1
	ORDINANCE P3104 Police Other Restricted 2024-05-06_1

	Item R - Agenda 2024-05-06 G1107 P&R SRF Amend_0
	Agenda G1107 Amend 2024-05-06_1
	ORDINANCE G1107 Parks Rec SRF 2024-05-06_0

	Item S - Agenda 2024-05-06 S1109 Big Ditch Stream Restoration Ordin_0
	Agenda Memo S1109 BIG DITCH Restoration Project 2024-05-06_0
	ORDIN S1109 Big Ditch Stream Restoration_1
	City of Goldsboro Memorandum of Agreement.docx
	North Carolina Department of Public Safety Directed Grants Agreement
	AGREEMENT # CITY OF GOLDSBORO 2023-2024
	FY 2023 Department of Public Safety DISASTER RELIEF AND RECOVERY/MITIGATION/RESILIENCY DIRECTED GRANT, NC Appropriations Act of 2023, HOUSE BILL 259, Section 5.3(a)-(c) & SECTION 5.6(a)-(l)
	NC DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY


	Item T - Agenda 2024-05-06 R1107 ARP 2021 amend_0
	Agenda Memo R1107 ARPA Ordinance 2024-05-06_1
	ORDIN R1107 ARPA 2024-05-06_1

	Item U - Agenda 2024-05-06 Surplus Donation Police Holsters _0
	Agenda Memo 2024-05-06 holster surplus v2
	Resolution 5 6 2024 donation of police holsters_1

	Item V - Agenda 2024-05-06 Resol Financial Advisory Services Davenport_0
	Agenda Item-Financial Advisory Services Addendum 05-06-24_1
	RESOLUTION Davenport Contract Update 05-06-24_1
	City of Goldsboro NC Financial Advisory Agreement Addendum April 2024

	Item W - Agenda 2024-05-06 Resol GHA Fuel Use agreement_0
	Agenda Item Fuel MOU with HACG 05-06-24_0
	Resol Fuel MOU with HACG 05-06-24_0
	Admin COG Fuel Dispenser MOU HACG_Need COG Signature

	Item X - Set Public Hearing - Mallard OIl
	Item Y - Purchase F-150
	Item Z - Installl Fence
	Item zAA - T&T Lease
	Item zBB - Balance Choice Cafe
	Item zCC - Appoint Committee
	Item zDD - Ch 72.29
	Item zDD1 - Ch 72.29 Memo
	Item zDD2 - Ch 72.29 ORD

	Item zEE - Ch 75
	Item zEE1 - Ch 75 downtown parking memo
	Item zEE2 - Ch 75 - Downtown parking ordinance

	Item zFF - Special Event & Street Closing Policy
	Item zGG - 5Kfor 5P
	5k for 5p - May 6
	Item T2 - 5k for 5p - Special Event Permit Application

	Item zHH - DGAF Parade
	Dillard-Goldsboro Alumni Parade Temporary Street Closure
	Dillard-Goldsboro Alumni Parade Permit Application

	Item zII1 - Agenda Wayne County Crime Stoppers Caper Chase
	Item zII2 - 4th Annual Caper Chase Road Run - Permit Application



